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Deloitte

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Shareholders of OPDE Investment Espafia, S L
Report on the Consohdated Financial Statements

We have audited the consohdated financial statements of Grupo OPDE Investment Espafia, S L
(hereinafier the parent company) and subsidary compames {heremafter the Group), compnsing the
consohidated balance sheet at 31 December 2015, the consohdated income statement, the statement of
consohdated changes 1n equity, the statement of consolidated cash flow and notes to the financial
statements for the year then ended

Governing Body’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Parent Company’s Govermng Body is responsible for the preparation of the consohidated financial
statements of the Group, such that they present a faxr view of consehidated equity, the financial posinon
and the consolidated results of OPDE Investment Espafia, S L and subsidianes, m accordance with the
regulatory framework for financial tnformation apphcable to the Group n Spain, which 1s described 1n
Note 3 of the notes accempanying the financial statements, and for such internal control as they determine
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements free from matenal nusstatement, whetler
due to fraud or error

Auditor’s Responsibility

QOur responstbility 1s to express an opuion on the consohdated financial siatements based on our audut
We conducted aur audit 1n accordance with the Spanish regulatory standards for account sudiing Those
standards require that we comply with etfucal requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtamn
reasonable assurance about whether the consohdated financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement

An audit involves performng procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1h
the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the audilor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the nisks of material misstatement of the financal statements, whether due to fraud or error
In makimg those nsk assessments, the audttor constders nternal control relevant 1o the entity’s preparation
and fatr presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropnate n
the cireumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opiuon on the effectiveness of the enlty’s
internal control An audit also includes evaluaung the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounung esumates made by management, as well as evaluanng the overall
presentatton of the financial statements

We beheve that the audit evidence we have obtatned 15 suffictent and appropnaie to provide a basis for
our audit opien

Opimon

Tn our opimon, the accompanyng consohidated financial statements present fairly, 1n all matenal aspects,
the consolidated equity and financial posiion of OPDE Investment Espafia, S L and subsidianes at 31
December 2015, as do the consohdated results and consohidated cash flows for the year then ended,
pursuant to the regulatory framework for financial information apphed, and 1n partucular, the accounting
standards and critena therein




Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The accompanying consolidated annual report for 2015 contains the explanations which the Governing
Bady of the parent company consider appropniate regarding the position of OPDE Investment Espafia,
S L and subsidiary companies , the evolunen of business and other matters, but 1s not an integral part of
the consolidated financial statements We have venfied that the accowntng informauon in the
consolidated management report 1s consistent with that contained n the consolhdated financial statements
for 2015 Our work as auditors 1s confined to checking the consolidated management report within the
aforementioned scope, and does not include a review of any other information other than that drawn from
the accounting records of OPDE Tnvesiment Espafia, S L and subsidiary companies

DELOITTE

Ignacio Lézaun Echevarn

Apnl 29, 2016
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OPDE Investment Espafia, L and subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS FOR 2015 AND 2014 (Notes 1, 2 and 4}

{Thousands of euros)

Notes Year Year
2015 2014 (*)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Net rovenue Notes 2 ¢, 6, 21 &244 31 560 58 950
Sales 25 433 53 523
Rendenng of services 6127 5467
Changes In inventories of finished goods and work In progress Motes 15 & 21 21703 {5 260)
In-housge work on assets - 341
Proturemenis and consumables {43 816) (42 129)
Cansumption of goods purchased for resale Note 21 2 (1} {17 782)
Consumption of raw materials and other eonsumable materials Note 21 2 (4 167) {8886y
Subcontracted work (39 458) (23 430)
Impairment of goods lor resale raw materials and other consumables Note 15 {190) {21)
Other operating income 1057 2401
Mon-core income and sundry income 1056 2393
Operling grants released to inceme during the year 1 a
Personnel expense Note 21 3 (4 048) {4 570)
Wagas salanes and similar remunaration (3 237) {3 789)
Soclal sacurity expense (713) (758)
Severance paymenls (98) {23)
Other aperating expense Note 21 4 {4 665) {7 040)
Exlarnal services (4 387) (5 496}
Taxas (2594} (1 232
Losses impalrment and changes in trade provislons Notes 112 & 17 138 {101}
Other cperating expense (123) {211)
Degprecration and amertisation charge Notes 7 & 8 {1740) {1 804}
Releage of non-tinanclal capital grants and others 4 9
Provision excess 2 819
Impairment and results on fixed assels disposals Notes 7T & & {34} {31
Impairment and losses {34} {61)
Rasults on disposals and other - 24
OPERATING RESULT 43 1720
Financizal iIncome 129 173
From marketable securities and other financial Instrumonts Note 111 129 173

- From third parties 129 173
Financlal expense {1328) {1 548)
Payables to third partiss Notes 13 & 18 {1323) {1 462}
For updating of provisions {5} (54)
Exchange differences 906 1044
Impairment and result on disposal ot financial instruments ags 2 094
Impairments and losses Note 111 1022 B
Results on disposals and other Notes 2c & 112 (34) 2086
FINANCIAL RESULT 885 1765
PRE-TAX RESULT 738 3 485
Income tax Note 20 1323 (3 025)
RESULT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 2 (61 460
RESULT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS Note 14 4872 57224
CONSOLIDATED RESULT FOR THE YEAR 6 933 5 684
Result attributable to the parent company 6937 5740
Result attributable to minority nterests {4) (56}

("} Includad sokaly for comparative purposes (Notes 2c & 3 5)

Nates § to 24 In the consolidated notes and in the accompanying annexas are an intagral part of the consofidated Income staternent al December 31 2015
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OPDE Investment Espafia, S L and subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR 2015 AND 2014 [Notes 1, 2 and 4

{Theousands of euros)
Notes Year Year
2085 204 }
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES () 6146 5 589
Pre~tax result for the year T4 8 630
Adjustments for 9.204 0386

- Degreciation and amorisation charge Npes 7 B& 14 5887 5930
Impajmment 51 a2
Changes m previsions Note 17 - 393
Relaasa of grants on financial assels and athers 4} 9
Gains/k on 1 and dispasals of financial instruments (588) [2.094)
e h on d 7y and is of ficed assels Note 21 5 {301) (24)
Provison #xcess (22)

- Financial income (137) (183),
Funancial expense 5644 8131
Exchange differencas {908} {1 044)

Changes in working ¢epltal {3551) {5199)
Inventonies Nets 15 {21 558) 6438
Trade and other recervablos 11616 (12 283)
Other current assets 12 533
Trade and other payables 6688 26828
Payablas ia group companies and associates - (2 145)
Cither tunreri kabitles [279) (358)

Other cash fiows Irom operaling aciivities {6721} {6 908)
Interest paxd (5365) (8 001)

~ Interest receved 137 1B8
Incoma tax paid net {1914} {768)
Other colactions {payments) for provisicns Note 37 43 {327

- Other coflechons (payments) 273

CASH FLOWS FAOM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (I} 5201 10 266

Payments dua Io investment (2 125) {7 029)

« [nfangible assets Nole 7 {B) (1 BS8)
Property plant and equpment Nota B {674) (879)
Other financial 23sets net Mote 111 {820} {3772)

~ Group compames and associates (625) (a71)

Calleciions on divesiments 7326 17286
Intangible assels 32 14

~ Proparty plant and equipmant z2 26
Other financial assets nat Notes By 111 5742 17119
Onher collecions on provisions Note 17 530

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES (I} (15 617}, 114 245)

P ds and 1s refating to lablfity instruments (2.17M {11 446)
1s5ue of

Bank borowings Note 181 5193

Collections from asscciated and related companies 51 48
Aepayment and amortisatien of

Bank borrowings Note 18 (12 816} {15 747)]

Other borrowings {52) {928),

Pay o1 dividends and rem. ion of other aqully Instruments {2 800} (2.600)
Drvidends Note 16 2 (2 800} (2 800)

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE VARIATION (IV) 806 1.044

KET INCREASE/DECREASE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {l+li+H1+1V) {3 354] 3032

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yaar 11 574 9320

Exil from consolidation scopa dua 16 spin off (Note 1) {a79)

Cash and cash equivalents a1 year end rom gontinumg operztons 7558 -

Gash and cash equivalants at year and from disontinuad operations {Note 14) 854 11974

{ ) Included solely for comparative purposes {Notes 2.¢ and 3.5)

Notas 1 to 24 n the consciidated notas and the accompanying annexes are an ntegral part of the cash flow statements for 2015
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OPDE Investment Espana, S.L.
and Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

Corporate purpose and activity

OPDE !nvestment Espafa, S L, (hereinafier the Company) was incorporated on 20 January 2005 under the
name Otras Producciones de Energia, S L (OPDE, SL) On 3 July 2009 Qtras Producciones de Energfa,
S L changed its name to OPDE Investment Espafia, S L

On that dale a capital Increase was executed In the investee, Otras Producciones de Energia Fotovoltaica,
S L through the contnbution of a line of business by the company such that OPDE Investment Espafia, S L
became a holding company with interests In vanous group companies and associates while Otras
Producciones de Energia Fotovoltaica, SL continued to carry out the actwities connected with the
development of solar parks which until that time had been carned out by OPDE, S L The contnbution was
covered by the Special Regime for mergers, sphis, asset contributions and share exchanges contained in
Provincial Law 24/1996 on Corporate Income Tax For detailed information of the process see the Notes for
the conschdated financial statements for 2009

As a result of the contnbution of the “solar plant development, marketing, installation, sale and mamtenance”
business to Otras Producciones de Energla Fotoveltaica, SL the Company’s comorate purpose mainly
consists of

- The subscnption, acquisition, transfer, management, admimstration, holding and enjoyment of stocks
and shares representing an interest in companies resident and not resident in Spanish terntory and
financial assets n general, fixed or vanable income, invelving any secunties, and the assignment to
third parties of equity, Interests in the equity of other companies and shares in the capital or assets of
collective investment undertakings, whether listed or other in orgamsed markets, without carrying out
activities typical of collective investment undertakings

- Sale of energy to electncity companies
Its registered office for mercantile and tax purposes 1s located in Fustifiana {(Navarre)}

At the 2015 and 2014 year end OPDE Investment Espadfia SL Is the parent of a group {nereinafter Grupo
OPDE or the Group), made up of the subsidianes and associates detarled n Annex | and |i, respectively

A breakdbwn by segment and the most significant changes in the consolidation scope are detalled in Notes
24 4 and 2 ¢ respechvely

For the purposes of prepanng the consolidated financial statements, a group 15 understood to exist when the
parent company has one or more subsidiares, t € companies controlled direcily or mdirectly The principles
applied n the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements, together with the consohdation
scope, are set outn Notes 2 and 5

The consohdated financial statements of Grupo OPDE for 2015 were presented by the Directors at the
Board of Director s Meetng held on March 31, 2016




S
opde

Grupo Opde

The consolidated financial statements of Grupo OPDE for 2014 were presented by the Directors at the
Board of Directors Meeting held on March 31, 2015 and approved at the General Sharehclders Meeting for
OPDE Investment Espafia, S L held on June 30, 2015 and registered with the Navarre Companies House

Spin off of Proyectos Integrales Solares, SL

On June 30, 2014 at the Extraordinary General Meeting the shareholders unanimously approved the partial
spin off of a part of their equity in favor of the trading company, Photovoltaic Global Distnbution, S L, which
was constiuted simultaneously and as a consequence of the saxd partal spin-off The corporate address of
said company 1s In Fustiiana (Navarre) In making a block purchase of all the capital shares sad company
became the owner of Proyectos Integrales Solares, SL (Single Shareholder Company) This agreement
was published in the Official Bulletin n?136 of Companies House on July 21, 2014 and became a public
deed on October 13, 2014 which was later rectied and recorded as a public document on January 13,
2015 Subsequently, on January 16, 2015 the agreement was registered in Gompantes House

The main aspecis of the approved draft lerms of division were as follows

1 Procedure

The partial spin-off operation consisted 1n separating the related assets and habiities to the newly set up
company (which was initially held in the same percentages by the same shareholders — note 16-),
Photovoliaic Global Distribution, S L, regarding the holding of 100% of the share capital of Proyectos
Integrales Solares, SL U

As the beneficiary company of the spin-off was a limited hability company, and addihonally, in accordance
with the terms of article 78 bis of the Act 3/2009 of Apnl 3, regarding structural modifications of trading
companies (according to which, the shares in the new company will be attributed to the shareholders of the
company which proportionately sphits off the shares they hold in the capital of the spin-off company) there
was no obligation for the spin oif to be subject to any independent expert report

On March 13, 2015 the General Shareholders Meeting of Photovoltaic Global Distnbution, S L approved a
capital increase due io the entry of a new Shareholder This subsequently became a pubhc document on
March 26, 2015

In addition, as the beneficiary company of the spin-off was a imited Ytability company, a Directors report
regarding the draft terms of division was not required

2 Spin-off balance sheet

The spin-off balance sheet was closed at December 31, 2013 (being approved at the General Shareholders
Meeting on June 30, 2014)
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3 Accounting effect of the spin-off

As a consequence of the entry of a new shareholder in the capital of the bengficiary company, the ownership
structure and the taking of decisions changed, such thal, from an accounting poiri of view, the date for the
spin-off for accounting purposes was not that from the begining of the year, but that from the date at which
the approved draft terms of division became a public deed, 1 8 October 13, 2014

Thus, the Group mtegrated the results of the sub-group Promso up to Qctober 13, 2014 These are as
follows

From1114+to
Losses and gains 1310 2014
Sales 13 874
Rendenng of services 257
Procurements and supplies {12 825)
Other operating income 27
Personnel expense (550}
Other operaling expense {1 023)
Depreciation of plant, propery and equipment (41)
Provisions axcess 14
Impairment and result on disposals of property, plant and equipment 3
Cther income / expense 33
OPERATING RESULT {231
Financial income 94
Financial expense {192}
Exchange differences 86
Impairment and result on disposal of inancial instruments 26
FINANCIAL RESULT 14
PRE-TAX RESULT {217}
Corporate income tax (83)
RESULT FOR THE YEAR (280)
4 Exchange ratio and procedure

As a consequence of this operation, the sharehelders of the partially spun-off trading company recewved a
number of shares proportional to the shares which they held in the company which was divided i lieu of an
economic transfer

The shareholders in the separated company received a number of shares in the benehiciary company
equivalent to divading by four the number of shares they held in the dwvded company The exchange rabo did
not involve any payment to the shareholders of the spin-off The exchange rate was based on the real value
of the economic umit of the dvided company, and taking inte account the real value of its respective assets
and liabilites No complementary payments of any kind were foreseen
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5. Assels and llabilities which were transferred to the beneficiary company of the spin-off

Opde Investment, S L divided the economic unit consisting of the sharehelding it held in the share capital of
Proyeclos Integrales Solares, SL U

The asset and habihty items which were transferred from the parent company of the Group to the benefictary
company were the following

Asset Theousands Liability Thousands
of euros of euros
Long-term 1nvestment in Group
companies and associates 17200 |Voluntary reserves (Note 16) 1200
Total 1200 |Total 1200
6 Spin-off tax regime

The partial spin-off operation was taxed under the Tax Regime lard outin Chapter IX of Title IX of Regional
Act 24/1996 of December 30, regarding corporate income tax in the Region of Navarre As such, the
Navarre Tax Authorities received the appropniate information

Sector regulation in Spain

The electnoity generation activity of the Company 1s regulated by electnicity sector Law 413/2014, of June 6,
which came into force on June 10, 2014 as well as the regulatory prowisions covered by sald law

On 28 May 2007, Royal Decree 661/2007 was pubhished, which regulates energy production activity covered
by the Special Regime Subsequently, on 26 September, 2008, Royal Decree 1578/2008 was published,
regarding remuneration in the activity of electncal energy production through solar photovoltaic technology
for nstallations subsequent to the remuneration deadline of the Royal Decree 661/2007, of 25 May 2007

On 23 November 2010, the Royal Decree 1565/2010 of November 19 was published, which regulated and
modified cerain aspects related to the actwity of electncal energy production covered by the Special
Regime This Royal Decree considers a premium reduction of between 5% and 45% for new projects which
enter in the first pre-allocations called after the coming inte being of the Royal Decree, as well as abolishing
the option of receving the regulated tanff from the 26th year onwards

In addition, on 24 December 2010, the Royal Decree 14/2010 of 23 December was published, introducing
urgent measures for the adjustment of the tantf deficit in the electncal sector This Royal Decree established
a limit In the working equivalent hours for photovoltaic installations which have the nght to the recewving of a
premum and the wroduction of a toll of 0 5E/MWhk in order for the special regime to contnbute to the
mamntenance and development of the transport and distnbution network

The Sustainable Economy Law (Lay 2/2011) extended the number of years with nghts to a premium tanff
from 25 years to 30 years for those facilites covered by the tanif regime from the Royal Decree 661/2007

On 28 January, 2012 the Official State Bulletin was published which brought into effect Royal Decree — Law
1/2012 (RDL 1/2012), which suspended pre-allocation remuneration processes and abolshed economic
incentives for new electnc energy installatons based on cogeneration, renewable enargy sources and
waste

In 2014 and 2013 a senes of regulatory modifications came Into effect which has substantially altered the
business of the Group, amongst which the following are highlighted
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In 2014 a regulatory development to Royal Decrae-law 9

On 27 December, 2012, Law 15/2012 was published In the Official State Bulletin, regarding
sustainable energy measures This taw brought into effect a new tax on the production of electncily,
amounting to 7% of the sales of electrical energy of all producers regardless of the type of energy
or form of payment This law came into effect on January 1, 2013

On February 2, 2013 the Royal Decree 2/2013 of February 1 was published, regarding urgent
measures for the electncal system and financial sector This legal document states that from 2013
onwards, the CPI to be used to update premums and tanffs will be the underlying CPI, which
excludes fresh food and energy products from flat taxes In addition, all special regime technology
15 gathered under a single remuneration formula 1 establishes that this remuneration is to be
carmed out under the regulated tarif formula, except when the holder of the facility decides to
receive only the market pnce (without premiurn} Therefore, the option of selling the electricity in the
glecinc energy production market at market price and receiving a vanable premium based on the
market price 1s ehminated This Royal Decree came into force the day after iis publication and was
replaced a few months after by the coming inte effect of Royal Decree-Law 9/2013

On July 14, 2013, Royal Decree-Law 9/2013 came into force, which adopted urgent measures (o
guarantee the financial stability of the electrical system This Royal Decree-Law set up the
pnnciples on which the legal regulations will be based on regarding the legal and economic regime
appiicable to electrical energy production faciliies using renewable, cogeneration and waste energy
sources, and established a senes of mechanisms 10 virtue of which, and in accordance with the
subsequent development of this regulation, cenan complementary remuneralions are established
for taciities of this nature in order to guarantee a reasonable operational profitability before tax on
the investment This Royal Decree, amongst other 1ssues, replaces the special regime In place up
to the time, and In particular and explicity the Royal Decree 661/2007, of May 25, which regulates
electrical energy production actwity under special regme and Royal Decree 1578/2008 regarding
remuneration In the actvity of electncal energy production through solar photovoltaic technology for
tacilities subsequent to the remuneration deadline of the Royal Decree 661/2007, of May 25

2013 was approved, which was formalzed in the

approval of Royal Decree 413/2014, which regulates and dehnes the new legal and economic model, and In

the Ministenal Order

applicable by type to determine the specific retnbution The information 1s in more detall as follows

On June 6, 2014 Royal Decree 413/2014 was approved, which requlates the activity of electncal
energy production using renewable, cogeneration and waste energy sources, and includes the
foliowing matters amongst others

- The remuneration of electncal energy producticn using renewable energy sources 15 set
according to the market price plus a specific remuneration

- The spectfic remuneration I1s made up of an investment compensation {based on the
power nstalled) and an operating compensation {based on the production), albeit this
remuneration will be different for each generator depending on the energy used and the
charactenstcs of each faciity type

|ET/1045/2014 of June 16, which sets oul the remuneration parameters for the facilities
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- The operating remuneration values will be revised annually for faciites whose operating
costs essentially depend on the pnce of fuel, every three years investment remuneration
estimates may be rewised for facilites by the market pnce of energy sale, as well as
directly related remuneration parameters, and every six years the value upon which
reasonable profitability of the facihhes 1s based will be revised Once recorded, under no
circumstances may the two following parameters be revised the regulatory useful hie and
the standard value of the iniial investment of a facility

- To calculate the specific remuneration, an eshmate 18 made of the standard income from
the sale of the generated energy, valued at the pnce (eshmated) of the praduction market
Given that there may be differences between the estimated market price and the final
price, article 22 of RD 413/2014 establishes an adjustment mechamsm for the specific
remuneration which takes into consideration market price adustments At the end of the
regulatory useful life of a faciity or the situatton In which the specific remuneration regime
is lost, the positive and negative balances of the adjustment values for dewiation from
market price will be settled by the entity in charge of the liquidation in the six iquidations
subsequent to the ending of the regulatory useful life of the facikty or the date of is
renunciation

«  On June 20, 2014 the Ministenal Order |ET/1045/2014 of June 16 was published, which approved
the remuneration paramelers for facility types applicable to certan electncal energy production
faciliies using renewable, cogeneration and waste energy sources This Ministenal Order
introduced the following points

. Aclassification of faciity types is set up according to the technology, power installed, age,
glectric system and other segments required for the remuneration regime to he applied
Each group and sub-group of faciliies corresponds (o a sel of nstallation types, to which
an indvidualized code I1s assigned Annexes | and IV of the order define the nstallation
types and assign a total of 2,071 numenc codes Each code 15 assigned with an annual
investment and operating remuneration

- The years subject to this method of remuneration are 2013 {from July 14 to December 31,
2013, Annex Il 1), 2014, 2015 y 2016 (Annex [ 2}

. The most relevant parameters are Investment remuneration for the power output,
operating remuneration, the regulatory useful life, the number of hours of mimmum
operating, the operating thresheld and the number of hours of maximum operating for
operaling remuneration purposes

There has been no modification to the above n 2015
Sector reguiation in laly

The regulatory framework which addresses both the procedures required as well as the operating of and
management of photovoltaic plants In Italy Is principally based on “Decree 387" from 2003, which 1s appled
in taly to the Eurcpean Directive 2001/77/CE The Direclive introduced the legal framework and general
rules, as well as establishing energy production regimes based on renewable sources in the ltahan electnerty
network The Decree set a fixed premium system on rates for a penod of 20 years, and made support and
promotion of energy production based on renewable sources a prienty by

- Simplifying and unifying authonzation procedures, through the introduction of deadlines and
specific and immovable laws

- Introducing economic Incenlives

- Granting pnonty of access to the national gnd
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Subsequently, the Itahan Government approved, via Ministenial Decree, the decree known as "Nuovo Conto
Energia”, which specifically regulated phetovoltaie plants and came Into being on February 19, 2007 This
Decree stipulated the prices for the income obtained from the premium rate system  In accordance with the
decree, three categones of photovoltaic plants were defined Non-integrated (basically, ground - based),
partiafly integrated, and integrated (pasically on roofs, greenhouses and car parks)

Due to the rapd expansion of the Italian Market, on August 6, 2010, the Ministnes of Environment and
Finance passed a Ministerial Decree which estabiished new rates applcable to the years 2011-2013 This
measure, named “3? Conto Energia” came into eftect on January 1, 2011

In March 2011, the Itaan Government enacted the Legislative Decree 28/2011 (also named "Renewables
Decree), which granted the Ministry of Finance the power to modify the system of incentives, and finalized
the process by approving the Mimstenal Decree of May 5, 2011 named “4% Conto Energia®

The "4° Conto Energia” established a system of varying Iincentives based on the type and size of
photovoltaic plants

The Mimistenal Decree of July 5, 2013 published the "5 Gonto Energia” which updated the Incentives set by
the Enmergy Systems Management for the photovoltatc sector 1n accordance with the real costs of
photovoltaic facilities

{n 2013 the following regulatory changes were introduced

- Ministenal Decree N° 69 published an June 21, 2013 extended the application of the “Robin Hood
Tax" to energy producers whose sales exceeded EUR 3 millicn and whose pre-tax profits exceeded
EUR 300 thousand This tax increases the “Imposta sul Reddiio delle Societa {IRES)" tax by & 5%

- OnJuly 1, 2013 the Ministenal Decree "5 Conto Energia” of July 5, 2012 ceased to be applied The
date on which it ceased to be applied marked \he deadline for new photovoltaic projects applying
for the electricity productien Incentives in accordance with the parameters set out by this Ministenal
Decree

. On December 20, 2013 a resolution named “Agenzia delle Entrate” was published, a ruling which
stated that amortization costs which exceed 4% per annum will not be deductible The Group
amorizes its photovoliaic facihbies over 25 years

- In 2013, the 2014 Stabiity Law was approved, through which the “Imposta Municipale Propna™ 1s
deductible in the “JRES” by 30% and 20% for 2013 and subsequent years respectively

In 2014 the ltallan Parlament approved the Decree Law n® 91 of June 24, with Law n?116 of August 11,

2014, which affects the incentives guaranteed to photovoltaic companies, offering other incentive options

This Law sets out that photovaltaic companmes must choose the new incentive model pror to November 30,
2014 The options established by the Law are the iollowing

. Extension of the useful ife of the photovoltaic park with a tariff reduction of between 17% and 25%
- Modification of the matunty dates of accounts recevable without modifying the useful e

. Reducton of tncome between 6% and 8% without modifying the useful Iite of the park This option
will be designated by default if the company still has not made a decision by November 30, 2014
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The Directors of the parent company considered the third option and such have included it in the impairment
tests conducted

There have been no modifications to the above in 2015

8

a)

b)

idiarles, agsoclat nd multi-gro mpanies
Subsidiarles

Censolidation has been carned out by applying the fully consolidated method to all subsidiaries, which
are those in which the Group exercises or may exercise control erther directly or indirectly, which is
understood as the power to manage the financial and operating policy of a company to obtain economic
benefit from its actvities This circumstance 1s generally, though not solely, demonstrated by having
drrect or indirect ownership of 50% or more of the voting rights of the company In accordance with part
b} of these Notes, the Parent company consolidates by the equity method those companies in which it
holds 50% of the voting nghts as it 1s understood that this percentage grants the Parent company
(directly or indirectly), significant influence, and not control, In accordance with the definiion given by the
Royal Decree 1159/2010 relaling to the Rules for the presentation of Consolidated Annual Accounts
{Note 3 1}

The captal interest of minonty shareholders in consolidated subsidianes equity and results 1s presented
under the item “Minorty interests” under “Equity” in the consclidated balance sheet and in “Result
atinbutable to minority interests” in the consolidated results statement respectively

Annex 1 of these notes defals the subsidianes included in the consoidation scope, indicating
percentages held (direct plus indirect) All of them have the same financial year as the Group those
subsidianes which are within the consolidation scope and have not been audited have been revised with
raspect to the consolidation scope by the chief auditor

Regarding the subsidianes in England, the Group’s Board of Direclors have expressed that it i1s thewr
intention to qualily for audit exemption through section 479A of the Compantes Act 2006 The
subsidianes benefitting from this exemption are Epsilon Solar Limited, lota Solar Limited, Kappa Solar
Limied, Lambda Solar Limited, Alpha Solar Limited, Gamma Solar Limited, Beta Solar Limited, De!ta
Solar Limited, Omega Solar Limited, Omicron Solar Limited, Sigma Solar Limited, Tau Solar Limited and
Theta Sotar Limited

Jointly held and assoclate companies

Jomtly-held companies are those which constitute a joint business and are consolidated by applyng the
proportional consolidation method, which consists of the inclusion in the consolidated annual accounts of
the portion of assets, habiites, expense and income of these companies which corresponds to the
percentage of its equity which 15 owned by the Group A joint business 1s understood to be one in which
there 15 Joint controt together with other parties, which anses when a statutory or contractual agreement
exists under which the strategic decisions of the activities, both financial and operational, require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing contral At year end 2015 and 2014 there are no companies
held by the Group in which there 15 jont control
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Associate companies are those in which significant nfluence is exercised in their management, which is
understood to be the power to intervene In financial and operating policy decisions, but without ever
having contral or joint control Significant influence In a company 1s assumed when the interest held in
the company equates to or exceeds 20% Associate companes are registered by applying the equity
method The equity method consists of including a lne m the consolidated balance sheet "Long-term
Invesiments 1n group companies and assoclales — Equity method” for the value of net assets and
goodwill i there were, relating to the interest held 1n the associate company The net result every year
corresponding to the percentage held in these companies Is recorded In the consolidated resulls
statement as “Share in profits {losses) equity method companies

Annex 1 of these notes detalls the associate companies included in the consolidation scope All of them
have the same financial year as the Group

Held for sale and changes in the consolidation scope

In 2015, the Group has respeclvely recorded under “Non-current assets held for sale”, “Liabilizes related
to non-current assets held for sale” and “Result for the year from discontnued operations” the assets,
labiites and results corresponding to the companies, Promociones Fotovoltaicas Juglans, SLU,
Promociones Fotovoltaicas Juniperus, 8 L U, Promaciones Fotovoltaicas Laurus, S L U, Promocicnes
Fotovoltaicas Pinus, S LU, Ribaferada 3, Srl, Ribatorada 7, Srl, Piemonte Eguzki 2, Srl1 and
Piemonte Eguzki 8, Sr |, as the directers consider that their recoverable value will be recovered This
will be manly due 1o their sale instead of their continued use, which 1s considered tughly probable as a
plan has been set in motion to sell the asset at a pnce which adjusts to current farr values These assets
and liabilibes are in a position to be sold iImmedsately (Notes 5 21 and 14)

In addition, in 2015 the following promotional companies have been sold

Company Reason for exit of scope
Thau Gunes Limited $irket Sale
Theta Gunes Linuted Sirkett Sale
I.amda Gunes Limited $irket Sale
Chi Gunes Limited Sirken Sale

The effect of the sale of the companies in the table above on the accompanying consohdated income
statement for 2015 has not been significant

In addiicn, on December 16, 2015 the Group acquired shares In the company OPDE Sur, SA
{previously named Render Energias Renovables, S A), as a payment in heu of the debt that Grupo
Render Industnal, Ingenieria y Montajes, S L (heremnafter, Grupo Render} held with the Group
amounting to EUR 1 042 thousand The Group acquired a 44% shareholding which led to the Group
holding a 91% interest at December 31, 2015

1 2015 and 2014 the Group has not included the 24% share capital it has In Renter Gestiones, SL i
the consolidation scope, as It has insignificant assets, lrabiliies and operations At the end ot 2015 the
total amount of assets, equity and net result (proit) of this company totalled EUR 216 thousand, EUR 8
thousand and EUR 3 thousand respectivety (EUR 300 thousand, 6 thousand and 1 thousand in 2014)

In March 2015 the cempany OPDE US Corp was wound up without any disruption caused to the Group
This company was not ncluded in the consohdation scope in 2014
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In 2014, the Group acquired 32% of OPDE Sclare, S, for EUR 600 thousand {the remaining 68% 1s
owned by OPDE italy, Sr1) At 31 December, 2014 there was an outstanding amount of EUR 400
thousand recorded under “Sundry payables” in the balance sheet for 2014, which has been paid in 2015

In 2014, there was a spin-off of the Group company Proyecto Solares Integrales, SL U and thus since
October 13, 2014 11s no longer included n the consolidation scope (Note 1}

d) Gotng concern

As 15 descnbed 1n Note 1, the new legislaton which came nto effect in 2014 intreduced significant
uncenainty with respect to the development of the elecincal sector, and as a consequence the electrcity
sale segment and others, (note 24 4) in which the Group acts In accordance with the legislation passed
and 11s implementation, the Group has suffered a decrease in profitability and in the expected cash flows
of its assels in the segment, which n turn entails, amongst other i1ssues, a nsk with respect to the
Group s capacily to meet the financial commitments pertaining to current financial agreements {both of
prncipal and inlerest as well as meeting Financial Ratios, with the possible consequence of early
matunty of contracts stemming from these non-complances) Similarly, the remaining actvities carried
out by the Group {Note 24 4}, are related to the electnoity sector and thus are affacted by the
aforementioned regulatory changes

The Group s Directors have assessed the mpact of the new regulations on the energy segment and
others 1n which the Group acts, and in particular, as previcusly mentioned, on the capacity of the Group
to meet its financial commitments and cbligatons pertaining to financing agreements {Note 18}, and has
reached the following conclusions

e The Group has fully met all its financial commitments pertaning to financing agreements at the date
of presenting the accompanymng consolidated financial statements

« The Group will be able to meet any debt servicing uni the debts have been fully paid off

« The value of the projects is higher than the amount owed {1e the expected cash flows from the
projects are greater than the debt servicing due)

In these circumstances, the Group’s Directors have prepared these consoldated financial statements
following the going concern pringiple, due to, as was previously stated, incomphance being improbable
over the next twelve months regarding the financial commitments bomne in virtue of current financing
agreements, or for any foreseeabls sncompliance of financial commitments uny the final matunty date of
the financing contracts, it also being improbable that s fact results 1 any early matunty of financing
agreements

In addition, the Group 1s actively nvolved in projecis in other geographical areas which are not affected
by the regulatory changes previously referred to

3 Basis of presentation of the consolidated annual accounts

3 1 Regulatory framework for financial information apphcable to the Group

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Directors of the Parent company In
accordance with the regulatory framework for financial information applicable to the Group as set out in

a) The Code of Commerce and other commercial laws

b) The Regulations for the presentation of Consolidated Annual Accounts approved by Royal Decree
1159/2010, the General Chart of Accounts approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007 and their sector
adaptation
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¢} The mandatory rules approved by the Institule of Accountancy and Account Auditing within the
development of the General Chart of Accounts and their complementary rules

d) The remaiming Spanish accountng taws to be apphed
32 Fair view

These consolidated annual accounts for 2015 have been prepared on the basis of the accounting
records of the Parent Company and the companies which make up Grupo OPDE {heretnafter, the Group
— see Annex |) and are presented in accordance with the regulatory framework for financial information
applicable 1o the company and, in particular, the accounting pnnciples and cnteria contained  Such that
they express a true and fair view of equity, the financial situation, the Group results and the cash flows
for the year These consolidated annual accounts have been presented on March 31, 2016 These
consolidated annual accounts, which have been presented by the Company Directors wiil be submitied
for approval at the General Shareholders Meeting, and are expacted 1o be approved without any
modifications and deposited tn the Companies House ot Navarre.

3 3 Application of non-obligatory accounting principles

No non-obligatory accounting principles were apphed In addition, the Directors of the Parent Company
formally prepared these consolidated annual accourls taking into account all the obligatory accounting
principles and standards with a significant effect thereon All obligatory accounting principles were
apphed

3 4 Key 1ssues relating to the measurement and eshmation of uncertamnty

In prepanng the accompanying consoldated annual accounts eshmates were made by the Directors of
the Parent Campany In order to measure certain assets, liabilities, income, expenses and obligaions
reporied herein These estmates relate basically to the following

e The useful hie of property, plant and equpment and intangible assets {Notes 7 and B)

«  The assessment of passible impairment losses on certain assets (Notes 7, 8 and 9}

s The market value of certain financial nstruments (Notes 11, 12 and 13)

»  The recoverability of deferred tax assets (Notes 5 12 and 20)

« The calculation of provisions (Note 17}

+  The eshimates for accrued income and expense in 2015 relating to the sale of electnaity (Notes

21 1 and 24 4)

The Directors consider that the regulatory and tax changes regarding photovoltaic parks passed in 2014
{Note 1) constitute an ndication 1n the impairment of the value of these assets in accordance with the
chtena set out in Note 56, the Directors have calculated the recoverable valug of the photovoltaic
faciites by estmaung forecasted cash flows from past expenence and based on the best estimates
available and reducing shem by the weighted average of the cost of the capitai, which includes the cost
of the habilities and the nsks specific to the assets (Notes 8 & 21 5)

Although these estmates were made on the basis of the best information available at year end 2015 and
2014, events that 1ake place 1n the future might make 1t necessary o change these estimates {upwards
or downwards} In coming years Any changes in accounting estimates would be apphed prospectively
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3 5 Comparative informatton
The mformation retating to 2014 included in these notes 1s presented for comparative purposes with that
relating to 2015, however the information descnbed in Notes 1, 2 ¢ and 14 must be taken into account to
perceve a suitable understanding of evolution and comparabihity

3 6 Grouping of items
Certain 1iems of the cansolidated balance sheet, consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of equity changes and consolidated statement of cash flows are grouped together for ease of
understanding, however whenever the amounts involved are materal , the information 1s broken down in
the related notes to the consolidated financial statements

3 7 Changes n accounting policies

In 2015 there were no significant changes in the accounting policies used with respect to the cntena
applied in 2014

3 8 Correction of errors and other

In the preparaton of the annual accounts no significant error has been detected which has led to the
correction of the amounts included In the annual accounts for 2014

3 8 Presentational currency

The accompanying consolidated annual accounts are expressed In Euras Given the magnitude of the
figures they are expressed in thousands of Euros unless otherwise stated

Distribution of profit

The proposed distribution of 2015 profit that the Directors of the Parent Company will submut for approval by
the shareholders at the Annual Generat Shareholders Meeting is as follows

Thousands
of euros

Distributable profit-
Profit 4 543
4.543

Distribution-

Voluntary reserves 4 543
4 543

Accounting policies and measurement bases

The pnnepat accounbng policies and measurement bases used by the Group In the preparaton of the
conselidated annual accounts for 2015, prepared n accordance with the Spanish Chart of Accounts, were
as follows
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5 1 Consolidation principles applied

The main consohdation prnciples applied to the consolidated tinancial statements for 2015 and 2014 are
as follows

1

10

Companies in which there 1s a majonty shareholding, as well as those in which a majority of votes s
held on the Board and effective controt s exercised (which 1s defined as the power to direct financial
and operating policy with the purpose of obiaining economic profit from its activies), and which have
been consolidated by the fully consolidated method The fully consolidated method requires the
inclusion In the Parent Company’s balance sheet of all the goods, nghts and obhigations which make
up the equity of the subsidiary When applicable, the interests of munonty shareholders are recorded
in the item “Minonty Interests™ in the consolidated balance sheet, and all the income and costs
wncurred in the determinabion of the result of the subsidiary companies are included in the income
statement, onge the appropnate homogenizations and elminations have been camed out The
related information has been included previously

(n the preparation of the attached consohidated annual accounts all the important balances and
transactions between consolidated compantes have been eliminated

If the sttuaton anses that new companes are incorporated into the Group during the year, the
attnbution In the consolidated income statement of the income and expense 15 Imited to the penod
which extends from the date of incorporation of the company into the Group to year end

In addition, capital nvestments which are held n other companies with which there exists a long-
standing relationship, and in which the interest generally relates to 20% or higher, are measured by
the proportion of equity which the investment represents, atter having considered the dimvidends
recerved and other equity elimmnations

The remaining capital investments are presented in the accompanying consoldated balance sheet in
accordance with the critena setoutin Note 5 8

Homogenization of the individual accounts included in the consolidation scope the differences which
exist between Lhe accounting policies and measurement bases for the companies included tn the
consolidation scope are not significant

The financial statements m foreign currency on December 31, 2014 and 2013 have been converted
to Euros by applying the "closing exchange rate” method The net charge or credit resulting from the
conversion 1s recorded i the item “Translation differences” in the accompanying consclidated
halance sheet

In the case of shares being acquired subsequent to the taking of control of a company, the “Mmonty
interests” 1s reduced by the corresponding reduction of consoldated equity share, and the
“Consolidation reserves” are adjusted by the difference in value between the amount contributed and
the deduction of the minonty interest Therefore, goodwill 1s not presentin this type of transaction

The interest of minonty sharsholders in equty and in the results of consolidated subsidiary
companies 1s presenied in “Minonty interests” under “Equity* in the consolidated balance sheel and
in "Result attrbutable to minenty interests” 1n the consolidated results statement respectively

Associate companies are recorded by the equity method These companies are those in which
significant influence 1s held aver thew management, which 1s understood to be the power to intervene
in the fimancial and operating policy of the company, but without exercising control or having |oint
control Sigrificant influence 1N associate companies IS assumed when the interest held equates to or
exceeds 20%
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11 The equity method consists of inciuding a line in the consolidated balance sheet “Long-term
investments In Group compames and associates — equily method® for the value of the net assets and
goodwill i there were, relating to the interest held in the associate company The net result every
year corresponding to the percentage held 1n these companies 1s recorded in the consolidated resulis
slatement as “Share in profits (fosses} equity method cormparies”

5 2 Goodwill and business combmations

The acquisition of control of a subsidiary by the parent company consiitutes a business combination and
the acquisition method I1s apphed In subsequent consolidations, the elimination of the investment-equity
of the subsidiary companies will be done generally based on the values resulting from the apphcation of
the acquisition methed on the date of the acquisition of control The applcation methed 1s descnbed as
follows

Business combinations are registered by applying the acquisiion method for which the acquisiion date
1s determined and the combination cost Is calculated Acquired identifiable assets and habilities assumed
are recorded at fair value on the date of acquisition

Goodwll or the negative difference of the combination is determined by the difference between the fair
values of the assets acquired and the labilties assumed, and the cost of the combination on the date of
acquisiion

The cost of the combination 1s determined by the aggregation of

—  The far values of the transferred assets, the habilities incurred or assumed and the equity
instruments 1ssued on the date of acquisibon

—  The farr value of any contingency amount which depends on fulure events or comphance with
certain condiions

Expense entaled in the 1ssuing of equity nstruments or financial liabilities in exchange for the acquired
elements 15 not included in the cost of the combination

Accordingly, since January 1, 2010, fees paid to legal advisors or ather professionals who intervene In
the combination or internally generated expense are not included in the cost of the combination These
amounts are attnbuted directly to the financial statement

If the business combinaton 1s carned out in stages, such thal an investment exists previous {o the date
of acquisihion (ihe date of assuming control), the goodwill or negative difference 1s obtained from the
difference between

—  The cost of the business combination, plus the farr value on the date of acquisition of any
previous nvestment In the acquired company by the acquiring company, and,

—  The value of the identfiable assets acquired less the value of the labilies assumed, In
accordance with the critena previously mentioned

Any profit or loss which anses from fair value measurement on the date of assuming control, from the
previous investment in the acquired company is recorded In the meome statement If the mvestment in
ihe acquired company had been previously measured at far value, any pending adjustments to the profit
for the year are transferred to the income statement Furthermore, the cost of the business combination
is assumed to be the best reference when estimating the fair value of any previous tnvestment on the
date of acquisition
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In the excephonal circumstance that a negative difference anses in the business combination, then this 1s
recorded in the income statement as anncome

If the measurement processes required 10 apply the acquisition method for a business combination have
not concluded at the year end for the year in which the combinatton occurred, the registration 1s
considered provisional, and the provisional values can be adjusted in the tme penod required 1o obtain
the required information providmg that such penod does not exceed 1 year The efiscts of the
adustmenis camed out in this penod are recorded retrospectively, and comparative informaton s
modifhed f required

Subsequent changes In the fair value of the contingent amount are adjusted aganst results, except when
the amount has been classified as equity, In which case the subsequent changes in its fair value are not
recognized

The goodwill gensrated in the consolidation represents the excess cost of the acquisition with respect to
the Group interest in the far value of the dentifiable assets and jiabiities of a subsidiary company or
jointly held enuty on the acquisition date

The positive differences between the cost of the share capital 1n the consolidated entibes with respect to
the corresponding book values acquired, adjusted on the date of the first consolidation, are recorded as
follows

1 If they are attributable to specific equity elements of the acquired companies, increasing the value of
the assets (or reducing habilities) for those whose market value are superor {infenor) to the net
carrying values which figure 1n the balance sheets and whose accounling criena 1s similar to the
assets (habiibes) of the Group amaortization, accruals, etc

2 If they are attnbutable to specific intangible assets, and are exphatly recogruzed 1n the consohidated
balance sheet providing that their fair value on the acguisition date can be reliably determmed

3 The remaining differences are registered as goodwill, which are assigned 1o one or more SPeCHIc
cash generating units

Goodwill 1s only registered when it is has been acquired for good and vaiuable consideration, and thus
represents advance payments made by the acquinng enhty for the future economic benefits of the assets
of the acqured company , which are not indivtdual n nature and are separately identfiable and
recognizable

Goodwill values are maintained at ther acquisiion cost At the end of the accounting year, estimates are
made of their value to ascertam i there has been any impatrment which reduces their recoverable value
1o below the net cost recorded if such cases anse imely reorganization occurs by using a contnibution to
the item “Impawrment and results on dispesals of fully consolidated companies — equity method” In the
consolidated income statement

It any impairment arose related to goodwill it 1s not subsequently reversed

At the time of disposal of any subsidiary company the amount attributable to goodwill 1s included in the
determination of the profits and losses resutting from the disposal

If subsequent to the attaiung of control there are any sales operations or purchases of shares in a
subsidiary without losing control, the impact of these transactions 1s included in equity and the
consclidation goodwill amount ts nol modified
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5 3 Intangible assets
As a general rute, intangible assets are recognized itially at acquisition price or production cost and are
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated amorization
losses These assels are amortized over the years of their useful ife

Research and development expenditure

The Group recognizes research expenditure as an expense In the year in which 1t 1s incurred
Developmant expenditure 1s mamly based on the cost of personnel assigned to the Research and
Development Department, and the production costs relating to tnals necessary in order to obtain fresh
knowledge regarding the development of new products aor processes or sigrificantly improve exishng
ones, including the necessary production costs entaited In the creation of non-marketable prototypes
Develapment expenditure is capitalized at the mament the following condilions are met

»  It1s specifically itemized by project and the related costs can be clearly identified

«  There are sound reasens to foresee the tachnical success and the economic and commercial
profitability of the related projects

The Group s work on Its own assets Is recognized at its accumulated cost resulting from adding intemal
costs to external costs, based on the consumplion of own matenals, direct labor costs incurred and
general manufacturmg costs which are calculated according to absorption rates similar to those applied
for purposes of inventory measurement

Assets generated thus so are depreciated by applying a straight ine method over 5 years which s their
eshmated usefu! life

if doubls anse as to the techmical success or economic profitability of the Project, the amounts
capitalized are recognized directly in profit or loss

Patents, licenses, trademarks and simitar

Patents and concessions are carmed under assets at cost less accumulated amortization and the
accumulated amount of recognized value adjustments for impairment This heading manly reflects the
amounts paid 1n respect of nghts and licenses for the construction of parks They are amortized on &
straight-ine basis over therr estimated duration, which In the case of lcenses for solar parks, this
coincides with the Iife of the facility

Computer software

Computer software icenses acquired from third parties are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use the specific software These costs are amortized over their estmated useful
lives

Expenses assoclated with software maintenance are recognized when incurred Costs that are directly
associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group, and
that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recogmzed as
intangible assets Direct costs include the software development employee costs and an appropnate
portion of relevant overhead

Software development costs recognised as assets are amorbsed over the software's estimated useful lfe
(which does not exceed 5 years)




17

— L —
opde

Grupo Opde

5 4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are ishially recognized at acquisiion or production cost, and are
subsequently reduced by the related accumulated depreciaton and by any impament losses

recognized, as indicated in Note 5 6

Property, plant and egquipment upkeep and mantenance expenses are recognized in the income
statement 1n the year in which they occur Amounts invested In improvements that contnbute to
improving capacity or efficiency or extend the useful kfe are registered at thewr higher cost

Al the initial measurement of the fixed assets, the Group estimates the current value of fuiure obligations
of dismantiing, withdrawal and other actions related to the assets, such as repair costs to the land site
This current value 1s carned as the greater cost of the asset, and a provision 1s recorded {Notes 8 and
17), which 1s financially updated dunng those penods subsequent to its constitution

The Group depreciates its property, plant and equipment according to the straight-line method, at annual
depreciation rates based on the estmated useful hfe of the related items In this way the Group
depreciates Its photovoltaic facilites as well as the mtangible assets related to them aver 25 years

The useful Ife estmates with regard to items relatng to the depreciaton of plant, property and
equipment are as follows

Useful hfe
Buildings 20
Plant 25
Machinery 6-7
Furnishings 6-7
Tooling 3
Vehicles 5
Computer systems 4

Financial costs directly attnbutable to the acguisition or construction of property, plant and equipment
that need mare than one year before they are brought to use are recorded at their cost unul they are i

working condition

5 5 Property investment

The investment property heading in the consolidated balance sheet includes the values of land, buildings
and other held constructions, whether they are for leasing, or for obtairung proft from their future sale as
a consequence of their increase in value due fo market prices

At December 31, 2015 and 2014 the Group manly includes fand held for rent under this heading

These assels are valued according to the cntena indicated n Note 5 4 relating to plant, property and
equipment
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5 6 Impairment of intangible assets and malerals

At every year end (in the case of Goodwill and assets who have an undefined useful ife) or whenever
there 15 any indication of loss of value (for the remaining assets), the Group carnes out impairment tests,
to estimate the possible existence of impawrment which reduces the recoverable amount of the these
assets 10 below their carrying amount

The recoverable amount 1s understood to be the fair value of the asset less the greater of the sales cost
or usage value

The recoverable amounts are calculated for each Cash Generating Unit Whenever possible, in the case
of plant, property and equipment, the iImpairment calculation 1s performed by individual tem

The Company Management annually prepares a busmess plan for markets and activities for each cash
generating umt

The main hypotheses used by the Group in the impairment tests for the assets associated with the "Gale
of Electricity* segment (Note 24 4) are as follows

Hypothesis used Spamish Solar Itahan Solar
Parks Parks
Projection tume pertod 30 years 25 years
Energy sale price 48 21 €/Mwh 56 34 €/Mwh
Annual mcrease in energy sale price 2% 2%

The main components for the assets associated with the remaining segments are
- Resulis projections
- Investment and working capital projections

Other vanables which influence the measurement of the recoverable value are

— Type of reduction 1o be appled, understanding this to be the weighted average of the capital
cost, which 1s mamnly influenced by the following variables, the cost of the labilies and the
specific nsks of the assets

_  Growth rate of the cash flows used to extrapolate cash flow projections beyond that of the penod
covered by budgets or forecasts

The projections are prepared from past expenence and based on the best avallable estmales, these
bewng consistent with external infermation

The business plans prepared thus so are rewised and finally approved by the Directors

If an impairment loss must be recognized for a cash- generating unit which had been allocated all or part
of Goodwaill, firstly the goodwill carrying value for the unit s reduced If the mpairment i1s greater than this
amount, then the carrying value of the other assets of the cash generating unit are reduced
proportionately, until the greater of the following values farr value tess cost of sale, its usage value and
zero Based on this, the Directors consider that at December 31, 2015 there 1s no ewvidence of the need
to record any imparment in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
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When an imparment loss sibsequently reverses (a circumstance not allowed for Goodwil), the book
value of the asset or the cash generating umt 15 increased by the revised amount of its recoverable
amount, but i such a way thal the increased book value does not exceed the book value which would
have been recogrized if ho impatrment loss had been recognized 11 previous years This reversal of an
impairment loss 1s recognized as mncome

57 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leages whenever the terms of the lease transter substanhally all the
nsks and rewards underlying the ownership of the leased asset o the lessee Al other leases are
classified as operatng leases

Finance leases

In finance leases operabions i which the Group 1s the lessee, the cost of the leased assets is presented
in the consolidated balance sheet based on the nature of the feased asset, and simultaneously, a habtlity
is recorded for the same amount  This amaunt will be the lower value of the fair valye of the leased
asset and the present value, at the inception of the lease, of the agreed mmmum lease payments,
melude the pnce of the purchase option, whan it 1s reasonably certain that it will be exercised The
mmmum lease payments do not include contingent rent, costs for services and taxes to be pad by and
resmbursed to the lessor The total inancial charges ansing under the lease are aliocated o the income
slatement for the year in which they are ncurred using the effective interest methed Contingent rent is
recognized as an expense for the penod in which 1t1s tncurred

Leased assels are depreciated, based on their nalure, using similar critena to those applied to the items
of plant, property and equipment that are owned

Operating leases

Income and expanse resuliing from operating leases is presented in the consolidated income statement
in the year in which they are incurred

in additon, the acquisiion cost of the leased asset 1s presented in the consolidated balance based on its
nature, being ncreased by directly chargeable lease expense, which 1s recogmized as expense dunng
the period of the lease, and which is subject to the same cniena used for recognizing fease income

Any coifection or payment carried that might be made when arranging an operating lease will be treated

as prepaid lease collection or payment which will be allocated to profit or loss n accordance with the
ume pattern 1n winch the benefits of the leased asset are provided or received

5 8 Financial mstruments

Financial assets
Ciassification of financial assets-

The financial assets of the Group are classified in the following categones

a) Loans and receivables Frnancial assets ansing from the sale of goods or rendenng of services in the
ordinary course of the Company s business, or financial assets which, not hawing commercial
substance, are not equity wnstruments or derivatives, have fixed or determnable payments and are
not traded 1n an active market

b} Avallable for_sale financial assets These mclude debt secuntes and equity inshuments of other
companves that are not classtiied in any other category
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Inifial recognition -

Financial assets are mitially recognized at the fair value of the consideration given plus any directly
attnbutable transaction costs

Subsequent measurement -

Loans and recetvables are measured at amortized cost

Avallable for sale financial assets are measured al fair value and the gans and losses ansing from
changes in far value are recogmzed 1n equity until the assel I1s disposed of or It I1s determined 1hat it has
become (permanently) impaured, at which ime the cumulative gains and losses previously recogmnized in
consolidated equity are recognized consolidated income statement

Accordingly, impairment {on a permanent basis) 1s deemed to exist if the market value of the asset has
tallen by more than 40% over a penod of 18 months without the value being recovered Generally, faw
value 1s referenced to relable market values Accordingly, the hsted price In an active market 1 deemed
the best reference of fair value, except on those occasions when determined situations co-exist (for
example, book value exceeding bsted price, absence of disposal perspectives, low market trading
volume, recoverable expectations of the invesiment via dividends) which could lead to the understanding
that the Iisted value 1s not representative of the fair value, In which case measurements carmed out by
thurd parties will be addressed n accordance with generally applied financial practices (e cash flow
reductions or simiiar)

At year end on a minimum basis the Parent company carmnes out an ymparment test on those financial
assets which are not recorded at far value Objective evidence of impairment is deemed 10 exist |if the
recoverable value of the financial asset is less than its book value When this occurs, the approprate
wnite-down I8 recognized in the conselidated iIncome statement

The Group writes off financial assets when they expire or the cash flow nghts pertaining to the financial
asset have been transferred and when substantally all the nsks and rewards attaching to ownership of
the asset have been transferred, such as i the case of firm asset sales, factonng of trade receivables n
which the company does not retain any credit or interest nsk, sale of financial assets with repurchase
agreement at s fair value or any usage of the financial assets i which the transiernng company does
not retain subordinate financing or grants any type of securnly cor assumes any other type of nsk At
December 31, 2015 and 2014 the Group doas not hold any agreement of this nature

However, the Group does not write off inancial assets, and recognizes a financial iiability far an amount
equal to the consideration received, In transfers of financial assets in which substantally all the nsks and
rewards of ownership are retained, such as in the case of with-recourse factonng, financial asset sale
with repurchase agreemant at a fixed price or at sale price plus interest, and assel secuntization 1n which
the transfernng company retains subordinate financing or other types of secunties which substantally
absorb ali the expected losses At December 31, 2015 and 2014 the Group does not hold any agreement
of this nature

With respect to the value adjustments relaied to irade and other recevables, the criteria used by the
Group to measure the value adjustments, if the case arose, is fo make a provision for trade insolvencies
based on individual analysis of the recenables and an estimation of the amounts which are envisaged as
iregular or very doubtful
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Financial habilities

Financial labilities includes amounts payable by the Group that have ansen from the purchase of goods
and services 1n the normal course of busingss and those which, not having commercial substance
cannot be classified as denvative financial nstruments

Payables are iutially measured at far value of the consideration recelved and are adjusted by directly
aftributable transaction costs Subsequently, these habilities are measured according to therr amortzed
cost

Financial guarantee contracts are imually measured at fair value which, unless there is proof to the
contrary, will be the same as the premium received plus the current value of the premiums to be
recaived

The Group derecogmzes financial habilities when the cbligations giving nse to them cease 10 exist

Financial denvatives and hedge accounting

The Group uses financial denvatives to hedge the nsks to which its actvities, transactions and future
cash flows are exposed Basically, these nsks are variations n interest rates Within the framework of
these operations the Group uses financial hedging instruments {Note 13}

The Group has opted to designate these instruments, whenaver possible, (when accounting standards
are met), as hedging Instruments In order for a financial denvatve to be considered by hedge
accounbing, it1s necessary for the Group to hedge one of the following types of nsk

1 Vanations In the values of its assets and habilites due to fluctuations in price, interest rates or
balances to hedge (far value hedges}

2 Changes in cash flow estimates generating from financial assets and labilities, obhgations and
highly probable foreseen operations {cash flow hedges)

3 The net nvestment of a business transaction abroad {foreign net nvestments hedges}

Accordingly, the nsk associated with the item or hedged position must be effectvely eliminated
throughout the forecast penod of the hedging and there must be appropnate documentation indicating
that the arrangement of the financial denvative specifically occurred for hedging purposes of determined
balances or transactions, as well as the way n which this effective hedging is to be attained and
measured

In order for these financial instruments to be classified as hedges, they are imtially designated thus so
and the hedge 1s documented Accordingly, the Group initially venfies and regularly venfies throughout
s life (every year end as a minimum) that the hedging 18 efficient, 1 & , that 1t 1s expected prospectively
that the changes i fair value or 1n the cash flows of the hedged item (attributable to the covered nsk} are
almost completely compensated by those of the hedging instrument, and that, retrospectively, the results
of the hedge have vaned between a range of 80% and 125% with regard to the result of the em
covered

As has been previously mentioned, the Group applies cash flow hedges For these types of mstruments,
the gan or loss of the hedging instrument which has been deemed efficient 1s recognized provisionally in
equity, and 1s recognized in the income statement for the same penod i which the item Is being hedged
with regard to the result, except when the hedge corresponds to a transaction forecasted to result in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or liability, n which case the amounts recorded under equity wil
include the cost of the asset or liability when it 1s acquired or assumed {Note 13}
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5 9 Inventories

Inventones are measured at the lower of acquisition cost, produchan cost and net realizable value Trade
discounts, rebates, simiar items and interest included in the face value of the related payables are
deducted in determining the costs of purchase (Nate 15}

Production cost includes the cost of raw matenals, direct labor and general production overheads until
year end

Net realizable value 1s the estimated selling pnce less the estimated costs of completion and costs 1o be
incurred 1n marketing, seliing and distribution

The Group uses the FIFO method for recording costs

The Group makes appropriate value adjustments, recogmzing an expense in the sncome statement when
the nel realizable value of the Inventones 1s less than the acguisition price (or production cost) (Note 15)

Work 1n progress and finished products relate mainly to phatovoltaic solar parks in construction The cost
of fimshed products and work In progress ncludes the cost of design, raw matenals, direct labor and
other direct costs and general production overheads (based on normal operating capacity)

The net realizable value i1s the estmated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the related
costs estimated as necessary

Completed electricity generating selar faciities are considered inventories during the usual selling penod
of such facilities that normally does not exceed 18 months

In the case of inventones that require a penod exceeding one year (o be ready 1o be sold, financial
expense 15 Included in the castin the same terms as those envisaged for assels

At 31 December 2015 the Group has no purchasing commutments for the acquisition of inventories to
complete the construction of photovoltaic parks (EUR 3 447 thousand in 2014}

5.10 Cash and other cash equivalents

This heading Includes cash, bank current accounts, and if relevant, deposits and temporary asset
acquistions which meet the following requirements

— They are convertible into cash

— At the time of acquisition their matunty did not exceed three months

- They are not subject to a significant risk (in changes in value

— They are part of the normal treasury management palicy of the Company
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5 11 Granis, donations and bequests

The Group uses the follawing cntena for recognizing grants, denations and bequests recetved from non-
shareholder third parties

a) Non-repayable grants, donations and capial bequests These are measured at fair value of the
amount or asset received, according 1o whether they are of a monetary nature or not, and recognized
in the Income statement for the penod in proportion to the amortization or depreciation charged on
the relevant assels or, if applicable, upon their sale or value adjustment, with the exception of those
received from owners or shareholders which are directly recognized In equity as they do not
conshtute Income

b) Repayable grants These are recognized as habihbes whilst they mantain therr repayable nature

¢) Operating grants These are credited in the income statement when they are awarded unless they
are used to offset an operaung deficit 1n future years, in which case they are recogmzed n those
years If they are awarded 1o offset specific expense, they are recogrized in the income statement as
the related expenses are incurred

§ 12 Corporate income tax

Since 2010, OPDE Investment Espafia, SL and subsidiary companies whose corporate address is In
Navarre (Annex I, file consaldated tax returns This s regulated by the Regional Law 24/1996 of 30
December for the Region of Navarre govermng corporate income tax

Tax expense {tax income) comprises current tax expense {current tax income) and deferred tax expense
(deferred tax income)

fncome tax expense 1s the amount payable by the Group as a result of income tax settlements for a
given year Tax credits and other tax henefits, excluding withholdings and pre-payments, and tax loss
carryforwards from prior years effectively offset in the currem year reduce the current income tax
expense

Deferred tax expense or income refates to the recogmition and de-recognition of deferred tax assets and
labiites These include temporary differences measured at the amount expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and liabihties and therr tax bases,
as well as tax loss and tax credit carryforwards These amounts are measured al the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the pertod when the asset s realized or the labihty 1s settled

Deferred tax liabiliies are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except those ansing from the
inttial recogmition of goodwill or other assets or Iiabilties 1n @ transaction that neither affects the tax result
nor accounting result, and 1s not a business combination

Deferred tax assets are only recognized insofar as future tax profits will probably arise for the Group
against which 1o offset the temporary differences {Note 20)
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Accordingly, at a consolidated level any differences which may anse between the consolidated value of a
subsidiary and tts tax base are considered In general, these differences anse in the cumulative income
generated since ihe acquisiion date cf the subsidiary, in the tax deductions related to the investment
and the translation difference in the case of nvestments made m a functional currency different to the
euro Deferred tax assets and Yabilihes ansing from these differences are recognized except when, In
the case of taxable differences, the investor 1s able lo control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference, and In the case of deductible dilferences the difference 1s expected to be reversed in the
foreseeabie future and it 1s probable that the company will have sufficient future tax gains

Deterred tax assets and habilites ansing from transactions charged or credited directly to equity are also
recognized directly in equity

At each accounting close, the deferred tax assets recognized are reviewed and appropriate adjusiments
are made when there are doubts as 1o therr future recoverabiity Likewise, at each accounting close the
deferred tax assets that have not been recognized in the balance sheet are assessed and recogrized to
the extent af their recovery against future taxable profits at the lower of a maximum usage pencd of 10
years and the offset imit dictated by tax legislation

5.13 Termunation benefils

Under cutrent legislation, the Group 1s required to pay termination benefits 1o employees terminated
under certain condiions Therefore, termination benefits that can reasonably quantfied are recognized
as an expense In the year in which the decision to terrnate the employment relationship 1s taken

At 31 December, 2015 the consolidated financial statements do not include any provision In this
connection, as the Group Directors do nat expect any situation of this nature to anse

5 14 Provisions and contingencles

When preparing the consolidated financial statements the Group Directors have made a distinction
between

a) Prowisions credit balances covering present obligatons ansing from past events whose settlement
will give rise to an outliow of resources, but whase amount and/or timing I1s uncertain

b) Contingent liabilities possible obligations that anse from past events, whose future existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one of more events not within the Group’s control

The consolidated financial statements include all the prowisions with respect 1o which itis considered that
it 15 more lkely than mot that the obligaton will have to be settled Contingent habiites are noct
recognized in the financtal stalements, but rather are disclosed, unless the possibiity of an outflow 1n
settlement 1s considered to be remote

Provisions are measured at the present value of the best possible esimate of the amount required to
settle or transfer the obligation, taking nio account the nformation avaiable on the event and its
consequences Adjustments made to provistons are recognized as financial expense on an accrual
basis

The compensation to be recewed from a third party on settlement of the obhgation 1s recognized as an
asset, provided that there are no doubls that the reimbursement will take place, unless there 15 a legal
relationship whereby a portion of the nsk has been externalized as a result of which the Group i1s not
kable, in this situation, the compensation will be taken info account for the purpose of estimating the
amount of the related provision that should be recognized
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As 1s normal practice 1 the sector, the Group grants customer warranties under the turn-key contracts
for photovottaic planis The Group s Management uses judgment to determine the amount of provisions
necessary to cover potenhal warranty claims on turn-key contracts, which are estmated based on
theoretical projections and fistonical informahon regarding defects and estimated repair costs, and which
are regularly reviewed and adjusted At 31 December 2015 and 2014 no warrant provisions exist since
there 1s no significant ewidence i this respect, with the consideration that the warranties provided by the
manufacturers of the components used by the Group, as well as the external insurance obtamed by
manufacturers for (hose parts, would sufficiently cover any incident On the other hand a provision has
been recognized for EUR 426 thousand at December 31, 2015 (EUR 562 thousand in 2014} relating to
warranties for Group manufactured matenals sold to third parties, based on histoncal information
regarding defects (Note 17)

5 15 Revenue recognition

Revenue and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, 1 e when the actual flow of the goods and
services occurs, regardless of when the resuling menetary or financial flow anses Revenue 15
measured at the fair valug of the consideration recewed, net of discounts and taxas

Revenue from sales 1s resognized when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods sold
have been transferred to the buyer, and the Group netther continues to manage the goods nor retains
effective control over them

Revenue from the rendenng of services 15 recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the end of the reporiing pernod, provided the outcome of the transaction can be estimated
reliably

interest mcome from financial assets 1s recognized using the eftective interest method and dnadend
income I1s recognized when the shareholder s nght to receive payment s established Interest and
dvidends from Enancial assets accrued after the date of acquisition are recognized as Income 1n the
consolidated income statement

Sales of sofar parks

Revenues on turn-key projects for the construction of solar parks for non-Group thrd partes are
recognized by applying the percentage of completion to the total forecast margin on the construciion
and sale of the solar park provided that at 31 December each year the following condiions are met

- there 1s a firm obhgaton from the purchaser pnor to the commencement of the turn-key
construction

- total revenues to be received may be estimatad with an acceplable level of assurance

the costs o completion of the contract and level of completion to sad date may be relably
estimated

Where there 15 no firm obhgation with a non-group third party purchaser or where the result of a
construction contract cannot be rehiably estimated, contract revenues are recognized only up io the fimit
of the construction contract costs considered recoverable When itis prebable that the contract costs will
exceed total contract revenues, the expected loss 1s recognized immediately as an expense

The percentage of completion is calculated on the basis of total estimated revenues under each contract

and 15 determiined taking into account the relationship between the costs mcurred to date and total
forecast project costs
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At December 31, 2015 there are no projects which meet the conditions described above

At December 31, 2014 the UK projects, Natewood and Oakland met the atorementioned conditions to be
recorded by percentage of completion The margin was recorded as EUR 454 thousand under
“Revenus” n the accompanying income statement and EUR 1 351 thousand under “Trade recevables
tor sales and services rendered” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet for 2014

Sale of electricity (Spanish Solar Parks

Nexus Energia, S A, acts as a sales agent {or the group n the market, making settlements with different
energy market agenis and reflecting the billing

As is described In Note 1, In 2014 the segment of the Group related to the sale of electineity 1n the
Spanish market was subject to two different regulations which directly affected the price for which the
energy produced 1s billed, such that the incomes corresponding to that year were governed by different
regulahons based on the regulaton which was 1n force at the ime of the accrual Inihally, one regulation
was in force untl the coming invto efect of Royal Decree-law 413/2014 on June 6 and by another since
then until December 31, 2014

The income accrued since the entry of Royal Decree 9/2013, on July 14, until its final development into
the new law 413/2014 {Nole 1), was recorded based on the best eshimate according to the regulation
applicable The excess of income regulated in account to be received from the agent Nexus Energia,
S A, from July 14, 2013 to June B, 2014 was regulanzed in 2014

Based on this regulanzation, the Companies i this segment recorded amounts corresponding to
investment remunaration and for the Mwh produced alter the coming into effect of the Royal Decree-law
413/2014, received in 2014 according to the new law, which were recorded under “Revenue” in the
accompanying consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31, 2014

5 16 Foreign currency transachions

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of the Group are presented in Euros, which 1s the Group s functonal and
presentation currency

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transachons are translated 1o the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the transaction dates Foreigh currency gains and lossas resulting from the settlement of
transactons and translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and habikties denormnated
in foreign currencies are recorded in the income statement, unless they are deferred in equiy as
qualified cash flow hedges and qualified net investment hedges

5 17 Related-party transactions

In general, transactions between group companies are mitially recognized at fair value If applicable,
where the agreed price differs from the fair value, the difference 18 recogrized based on the economic
realty of the transaction Transactions are subseguently measured 1n accordance with applcable
slandards

Notwithstanding the above, 1n mergers, spin-offs and non-menetary contnbulions of a business the items

constituting the acquired business are measured at their carrying values in the consolidated accounts for
the group or sub-group after the transachon takes place
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When the parent company of the group or sub-group and the subsidiary do not intervene, the annual
accounts 1o be considered for such purposes will be those of the group or largest sub-group In which the
equiy elements are integrated, whose parent company IS Spanish

In these cases any difference which could anse between the net value of the assets and Yabilihes of the
acquired company, adjusted by the balance of grants, donations and bequests received and value
adjustments, and any capital amount or paid in capital by the acquining company Is taken to reserves

5 18 Current and non-current items

Current assets are those related to the normal operating cycle, generally considered to be one year, and
those assels which are expected to mature, be sold or realized n the short-term after the accounting
date Current assels also include financial assets held for negotiation, with the exception of financial
denvatives whose settlement penod 1s more than one year, and cash and other cash equivalents Assets
which do not meet these requirements are classihied as nan-current ilems

Accordingly, current labilites are those related to the normal operating cycle, those held for negotiation,
with the exception of financial denvatives whose setilement penod is more than one year and in general
all thase obligations which will mature or be settled short-term Ctherwise, they are classified as non-
current ilems

5 19 Environmental disclosures
Assets of an environmental nature are deemed those which are used in a long-lasting way n the
Group’s activity, whose main aim s lo mimmize environmental impact and protect and improve the
environment, as well as reducing and eliminatng future contamination
Business actions with an environmentat impact are considered an expense of the year or an increase in

the value of the relevant asset, on the basis of the measurement crileria descnibed in property, plant and
equipment in the corresponding note above

5 20 Cash flow slatemenis
The concepts used in the presentation of the conschdated cash flow statements are as follows

—  Cash flows mnflows and outflows of cash and cash equwvalents 1e highly hqud short-term
investments subject to low nsk of impairment

- Operating activites ordinary Group achwities, as well as other activities which cannat be
classified as inveshng or financing activiiies

- Invesing activities the acquisiton, sale or disposal of non-current assets and other investments
not inctuded in cash and cash equivalents

~  Financing activities activihes which cause changes in equity and the lhabikties which are not
included in operating activiles
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5 21 Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

The Group classifies an assel as non-current or as a disposal group held for sale when 1t has taken the
decision to sell the asset and considers that the sale will lake place at some time in the next twelve

months

These assets or disposal groups are valued at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell

The assets classified as non-current ahd held for sale are not amortized, but at gach balance sheet date
value adjustments are made to ensure that the carrying amount does not exceed the farr value less costs
to sell

Income and expense generated by non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale, which do not

meet the requirements to be classiied as discontinued operations, are recogruzed under the appropnate
item 1n the income statement according to their nature

Business combinations

In 2014 the Group acquired 100% of the company, Haymaker Mountmull, Lid in the UK for EUR 1699
thousand {Note 7}, the Directors having considered the full total of the premium pnce paid as Goodwill
derved from the operating nghts held by the company On November 3, 2015 the Group sold the company
for EUR 4 4 mulion, entirely registering a net profit of EUR 08 millon under “Revenue — Renderng of
services” in the consolidated income statement for 2015

Similarly, on the same date, the photovoltaic park associated with Haymeker Mountmill, Ltd was sold for
EUR 16 1 millon which has been recorded with a credit under “Revenue — Sales” In the accompanying
income statement for 2015 The net profit registered on the sale 1s EUR 3 million At year end there were still
outstanding amaunts to be collected from these transactons totaling EUR 200 thousand, recognized under
“Trade and other recevables™ in the accompanying balance sheet for 2015, which at the date of preparnng
these financial statements has been collected (Notes 11 2, 21 and 24 4)

In virtue of the sales agreement, the parties agreed that the electncity sale which has occurred since the
park first started operating, November 2015, untl its sale, correspond to Grupo OPBE, such that EUR 846
thousand has been recorded with a credit under *“Revenue ~ sales” and with a charge under * Trade and
other receivables — other receivables” for this concept This amount was collecied in February 2016
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The movements under this heading of the consolidated balance sheel in 2015 and 2014 are as follows (in

thousands of euros)

Year 2015
Non-current assets
held for sale (Note
Cost 311214 | Addwons | Disposals 14) Transfers | 31 1215
Research and development 319 - - - - 319
Concesslons, patents and licenses 2593 - - (1 470) 60 1183
Computer software 614 6 (61) - - 559
Goodwill (Note 6) 1 699 - {1 699) - - -
Other intangible assets 474 - (34) (22) (201) 217
Total cost 5.659 ] {1 794} (1.492) {141) 2278
Non-current assets
held for sale (Note
Amortization 3112 14 | Previstons | Disposals 14) Transfers {31 1215
Research and development (240) 79 - - - (319)
Concessions, patents and hicenses (181} (140) - 193 84 (212}
Computer software (386) {111) 61 - - (436)
Other intangible assets 21Ty Z) 2 - - (217}
Total amortization (1024) (332) 63 193 8hH| (1184)
[ Non-current assets
held for sale (Note
Impairment 311214 | Provisions | Dasposals 14) Transfers | 311215
Other intangible assets 61y - - - 61 -
Total Impairment (61) - - - 6l -
Opening Closing
Total intangible assets |  balance balance
Cost 5699 2278
Amortization (1024) (1 184)
Impairment (61) -
Net Total 4614 1.094
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Year 2014
Changes 1n the —|
consolidation
scope (Notes 1
Cost 311213 | Addmons | Disposals Transfers and 2 ¢) 311214
Research and development 319 - - - - 319
Concessions, patents,licences 2679 - - (84) (2) 2593
Computer software 628 23 - - 37} 614
Goodwill - 1699 - - - 1699
Other intangible assets 720 176 (128) (288) (6) 474
Total cost 4346 1898 (128} (372) (45) 5699
Changes 1n the
consoiidation
scope {(Notes 1
Amortization 311213 | Provisions Ihsposals Transfers and 2 ¢) 311214
Research and development (160} (20 - - - (240)
Concestons, patents, licences (42) (139) - - - (18D)
Computer software (306) (117 - - 37 (386)
Other 1ntangtble assets (220 (14) 14 - 3 217}
Total amortization (728) (350) 14 - 40 (1 024)
Changes 1n the
consolidation
scope (Notes 1
Impairment 311213 | Provisions Transfers Disposals and 2 ¢} 311214
Other intangible assets - (61) - - - 6N
Total Impairment - (61) - - - (61}
Opening Closing
Total mntangible assets | balance balance
Cost 4346 5699
Amortization (728) (1 024)
Impairment - (G1))]
Net total 3.618 4614

There have been no sigmificani addimons 1n 2015 The additons in 2015 mainly related to the costs
associated with the projects developed by the Group in Mexico, totaling EUR 176 thousand, recorded under
“Intangible assets — other intangible assets”

In 2014 the Group company,Otras Participaciones Industnales, SL acquired the company, Haymaker
Mountmull for the construction of a park and subsequent sale of both the park and the investment, i the
same way the Group did in 2014 with the companies, Haymaker Oakland and Haymaker Natewood From

this acquisition, goodwill arose amounting to EUR 1 639 1

housand, which was recorded under “Goodwll” In

the accompanying consclidated balance sheet for 2014 In 2015 the park has been sold and the associated
Goodwill has been wntten off (Note 6)
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In 2015, certan costs ncluded under “Intangible assets® n previous years have been transferred to
“Inventones — Work in progress” in the consalidated balance sheet for 2015 as (hey refer to expense which
i ncluded n the value of the inventones of the parks which are in the course of construction (Note 15) in
2014, the Direclors made a provision of EUR 61 thousand as imparment of intangible assets which was
charged under “Impairment and results on disposals of fixed assets” in the consolidated income statement
for 2014 as a best eshmate, which has been accordingly transferred to “Inventones — Work 1n progress” n
the accompanying balance sheet for 2015

in 2015, the Group has wniten off EUR 32 thousand correspanding to a credit tor engineernng work and start
up factlties for a park in construction in Mexico (EUR 114 thousand in 2014 for the same concept)

At year end 2015 the Group has fully amortized intangsble assets that are still i use for a value of EUR 513
thousand (EUR 60 thousand 1n 2014}

As 15 indicated m Note 10, the Graup has various finance leases 1n place for its mtangible assets amounting
to EUR 967 thousand m 2015 (EUR 1 508 thousand in 2014)

At 31 December 2015 and 2014 there are no firm commitments for the purchase of intangible asssts

Property, plant and equipment

The breakdown of the movements and significant information under this heading in the consolidated balance

sheets for 2015 and 2014 1s as tollows {thousands of euros)

Year 2015
Neon-current
Cost assets held for
311214 | Addinons | Disposals |sale (Note 14) | Transfers |31 12 [5
Land and buldings 3611 - - (64) (413 3506
Plant and machinery 130494 584 (336} (102 856) 1223} 29109
Other plant, toolings and furnishings 857 86 (61) - (20) 862
Other plant 1308 4 (20) (685) (478) 129
Prepayments and assets in construction 141 - - - (141) -
Total cost 136.411 674 17 (103 6{)5}—I 543 33606
Amortizatign Non-current
assets held for
31 12 14 | Provistons{ Disposals {sale (Note 14){ Transfers 311215
Buildings (752) (127 - - 10 {869)
Plant and machinery (18 357) (5 286) 329 17 552 {1599y (7361)
Olher plant, toolings and furmishings (350) (82) 46 98 (290) (618)
Other plant (1127 (40) 20 ~ 969 (178)
Total amortization (20 626) {5 535) 395 17.650 (910)] (9 026)
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Impairment Non-current
Provision/ assets held for
311214 Reversal | Disposals | sale (Note 14) | Transfers 311215
Plant and machinery (1.071) 335 - 736 - -
Total Impairment {1071) 335 - 736 - -
Total property, plant | Opening Closing
and equipment balance balance
Cost 136 411 33 606
Amortization (20 626) (5 026)
Impairment {1071} -
Net Total 114 714 24,580
Year 2014
Changes in the
consolidation
scope (Notes 1
Cost 311213 | Addwsons | Transfers Disposals & 2¢c) 311214
Land and buildings 3 596 31 - (16) - 3611
Plant and machinery 130 760 758 - - (1024)| 130494
Fitings, tooling and furnishings o977 9 - (6) (123) 857
Other plant and equipment [ 345 21 9 (67} - 1 308
Prepayments and assets 1 construction 467 60 (386) - - 141
Total cost 137 145 879 (377} _(89) {1147)| 136411
Changes in the
consohdation
scope (Notes 1
Amortizations 311213 |[Provisions| Transfers Disposals & 2¢c) 311214
Land and buildings (625) (127N - - - (752)
Plant and machinery (13 627) (5 291) - - 561 (18 357)
Fittings, tooling and furmshings {410} (57 - 6 71 {390}
Other plant and equipment (1120) (103) - 57 41§ (1127)
Total amortization (15 782) (5 580) - 63 673] (20 626)
Changes 1n the
consolidation
Impairment 311213 scope (Notes |
Provisions | Transfers Disposals & 2c) 3112 14
Plant and machinery (963} (108) - - - {1071}
Total Impairment (963) (108) - - - (L 071)
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Total property, plant | Opening Closing

and equipment balance balance
Cost 137 145 136 411
Amortization (15782) (20 626)
Impairment (363} (1071)
Net total 120 400 114 714

At year end 2015 and 2014 the Group owns property which 1s valued separately from land and buildings as
follows (in thousands of euros)

31122015 11122014
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross amortization Net Gross amortization Net
Land 1 054 - 1054 1138 - 1138
Buwldings 2452 (869) 1583 2473 (152) 1721
3506 {869) 2637 3.611 (752) 2 859

in 2015 the Group has registered an amount of EUR 546 thousand under “Plant and machinery” mainly
relating to modules, inverters and structures for a photovoltaic park in Spain (EUR 758 thousand in 2014 for
the same concept In Maxico)

In 2015 elements which were out of use and sold modules were written off, giving the Group a net loss of
EUR 34 thousand which i1s recorded under ‘Impairment and results on disposals of fixed assets —
mpairment and losses” in the consolidated income statement for 2015

Stmularly, in 2014 an amount has tor EUR 377 thousand was transterred i the companies n the UK under
the heading "Inventories — semi finished goods” in the consohdated balance sheet for 2014, relaiing to work
carned out In previous years which were recorded under property, plant and equipment The Company
Directors determined that this work could be included under inventones as it gave a higher value to the park
being constructed

As 1s descnbed in Notes 521 and 14, the Directors are commtted to a sales plan for certain companies of
the Group and have decided that all the requirements are met for the companies to be classified under the
heading “Non-current assets held for sale”, and as such have transferred a net total ameunt of EUR 85 219
for this concept On January 16, 2016 the Group signed a Sale and Purchase Agreement with & thurd party
for the sale of the Italian comparues Ribaforada 3, Srl, Ribalorada 7, 3 rl, Piemonte Eguzki 2, St and
Piemonte Eguzki 6, S r| subject to certain conditions which the Directors consider will be met and thus the
sale will be finalized dunng the second quarter of 2016 By considerng the sale pnce less sale cost, an
impairment reversal has been generated with respect to previous years for EUR 335 thousand, which has
been recorded as a credit under “Result for the year from discontinued operations” 1n the consolidated
income statement for 2015

Similarly, in 2015 Grupo OPDE began sales 1alks for the sale of the compames, Promociones Fotovoltaicas
Juriperus S L U, Promociones Fotovoltaseas Laurus S LU, Promociones Fotovoltaicas Pinus SLU,
Elogia Trans Uno, S L U, Cantillana Fotovoliarca, SLU,Eélicalalora, SL U andsubsidianes and Grupo
Basico Defta 2, SLU with potential buyers On November 30, 2015 a non-binding exclusive offer was
received from a potential buyer with whom sales nagotialions were started On March 31, 2016 a final Sales
and Purchase Agreement has been signed between both parttes without any changes being made to the
initial offer which s subject to certain conditions which are expected to be met dunng the second quarter of
2016 when the final transter and sale of these assets will finally take place The price offered does not imply
any accounting impairment on these assets of the Group
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In 2014 the Group recorded an impawment of propery, plant and equipment amountng to EUR 108
thousand, charged under “lmparment and results on disposals of property, plant and equipment -
Impairment and losses” In the consolidated ncome statement for 2014 and registered a credit to the ilem
“Plant, machinery, tooling, furnishings and other fixed assels™ in the consolidated batance sheet for 2014

The Group has pledged solar parks amounting to EUR 39 033 thousand (EUR 41 118 thousand in 2014) as
a guarantee agamst the meeting of commitments denved from certan clauses regarding the loans received
for the financing of the parks (Note 18 1) At December 31, 2015 this 15 recorded under “Non-current assets
held for sale” {(Note 14)

In 2015 no Group company or assoclate company assets have been acquired

Al 31 December 2015 the net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment located out of Spain s EUR
20 246 thousand, as well as EUR 39 011 thousand relating tc assets transferred to "Non-current assets held
for sale” (EUR 72 710 thousand in 2014)

There are fully amortized assets still in use as follows (in thousands of euros)

2015 2014
Pilant, machinery and other property, plant and equipment 513 591

As I1s broken down in Note 10, at December 31, 2015 the Group has taken out finance leases for iis
property, plant and equipment amounting tc EUR 58 704 thousand (EUR 81 916 thousand al December 31,
2014) —Note10- of which EUR 38 419 thousand corresponds to non-current assets held for sale {Note 14)

The Group has taken out a number of insurance pohcies to cover nsks relating to property, plant and
equipment The coverage provided by these policies is considered to be sufficient

At 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Group has no fixed asset purchase commitments

Property investment

At 31 December 2015 and 2014 the Group presenis an amount totaling EUR 702 thousand under
“Investment property” which relates to land acquired for the construction of solar parks This fand 15 feased to
the owners of the photovoltaic plants

Under the heading “Non-core and other income” in the consolidated income statement for 2015, an amount
totaling EUR 77 thousand (EUR 116 thousand in 2014} has been recorded, relating 1o the income from
mvestment property

At year end 2015 and 2014 no resinctions exist regarding the realization of new property investments and
the collection of the denving income, or related to gains obtained from a possible sale

At year end 2015 and 2014 there are no contractual obligations regarding repairs, maintenance or
improvements in the aforementioned Investment property
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Finance leases at year end 2015 and 2014, in which the Group acls as the lessee, are recognized based on
the leased asset as follows (thousands of euros)

2015 | 2014
Assets measured at fair value
Intangible assets (Note 7) 967 1 508
Property, plant and equipment (Note 8) 20 285 61916
Total 21.252 63 424
Intangible assets (Note 14) 443 -
Property, plant and equpment (Note 14) 318419 -
Total Nen-current assets held for sale 38862 i

At year end 2015 and 2014 the Group's finance lease conlracts have the following mimmum payable
amounts (including purchasing options If apphcable) in place, without taking into account common expense,
future increases due to wilation, or agreemenis regarding future updates of monthly rentals (in thousands of

euros)
31122015 31 122014
Current
Finance leases Nomunal | Current value value Nominal Current
Mirumum payable ameunts (*) value (Notes 7 & 8) | (Note 14) value value

Less than one year 6293 1282 2141 6293 3331
Between one and five years 25172 7 300 12279 25172 15 620
More than five years 58 625 14 013 24 408 58 625 46 440
Total 90090 22 595 38828 90 090 65 391

The breakdown of the most significant finance leases the Group holds at 2015 year end 1s as follows

Thousands of euros
Rental amounts
Purchase __pad
Park Locauon Inception | Duration option 015 2014
Almaraz XXXIV Extremadura| 30/04/2013 | 10 years 7 76 76
Ribaforada 7 (*} Italy 01/06/2011 [ 18 years 355 2379 2339
Piemonte Eguzk 6 (*) Italy 28/07/2011 | 18 years 57 294 327
Ribaforada 10 ftaly (G1/05/2011 | 18 years 9 587 590
Piemonte Eguzla 2 (*) Lialy 30/06/2011 | 18 years 255 1229 1124
OPDE Pugha—Ruatella1  |ltaly 01/08/2010 | 18 years 48 394 403
QOPDE Puglia — Ginosa | Italy 01/03/2010 | 18 years 43 399 443
OPDE Puglia - Ruatella 2 |Italy 25/05/2010 | 18 years 48 306 306
Solare Pugha — Ginosa 2 Ttaly 22/02/2010 { 18 years 43 306 306
Solare Puglia - Sanmicardo _jltaly 01/03/2013 | 18 years 46 325 325

) Companies classdied under "Non-current assets held for sale” {Note 14)
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The Group acting as the lessee has vanous operating leases relating to the rent of land on which solar

parks, property, machinery and vehicles are located

At year end 2015 the Company’s operating leases h
without taking into account common expense, future increases due to inflation, or agre

future updates of monthly rentals (in thousands of euros)

Operating leases Nominal value | Nommal value
Mmimum payable amounts 2015 2014
Less than one year 439 352
Between one and five years 1 037 102
Total (*) 1476 1454

(") EUA 173 thousand at less than one year and EUR 694 thousand between one
and ive years correspond to companies up for sale in 2076

ave the following minimum payable amounts n place,
ements regarding

Operating lease amounts recorded as expense in 2015 and 2014 under the item “Other operaling expense -
External services” (Note 21 4) are as follows {thousands of euros)

2015

2014

Lease payments (¥}

552

370

Total (**)

552

370

{*) Corresponds to non-cancelable lease contracts
{**) EUR195 thousand corresponds to companies up for sale m 20 16

There are no significant operating lease obligations at 31 December 2015 and 2014

Financial investment (long and short-term;}

11 1 Long-term financial instrumemnts

The classification by category of long-term financial instruments for Grupo OPDE 1s

thousands of euros}

31122015 31 122014
L.oans and receivables
- Loans to companies 1264 40
- Other financial assets 1818 8 609
Assets available for sale
- Equity instruments i3 13
Total 3095 8662

as follows (in
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Loans to comparies

At 31 December 2015 the Group has recorded vanous loans granted to third parties in pnor years as
long-term The breakdown of these loans 1s as follows (thousands of euros)

Date of Matunty date Average Balance at Balance at
concession inierest rate 311215 311214
Sociedad Thénca de Generacién de Energfa
Fotovoltaica XIX, S L 01/12/2008 Not fixed None 580 795
Sociedad Ibérica de Generacidn de Energia
Fotovoltaica VI, S L 01/12/2008 Not fixed None 554 768
Desarrollos Fotovoltaicos Valdecaballero 1 a
XVIL S L 01/12/2009 01/12/2018 1.5% 27 40
Total 1.161 1603
Impairment - (1 563)
Net Total 1161 40

The Group has granted loans to vanous companies amounting (o EUR 1 250 thousand which don 1
have a set mawrnty date In previous years the parent company decided to record an imparment
provision for the total amount of these receivables

On December 16, 2015 an acknowledgement of debt and pledging of shares operation was
undertaken, through which the companies, Sociedad Ibérnica de Generacion de Energra Fotovoltaica
Vl, SL and Socedad Ibénca de Generacion de Energia Fotovoltawca XIX, 8L (heremnaleter
Socledades Ibericas) recognized debts to the company, Otras  Producciones de Energias
Fotovoltaicas, S LU amounting to EUR 768 thousand and EUR 735 thousand respectively These
debts are to be paid off entirely through monthly instalments {with the interest written off}, starng from
January 2016, whose totals are to be the equivalent of 70% of the net monthly remuneration which the
Sociedades |béncas receive from the generation of photovoltaic energy, the remaiming 30% 1s retained
by the companies in order for them to meet their operating costs

Accordingly, as secunty on the tatal amount of the debt acknowledged by the companies, "lbéncas”,
Grupo Render Industnal, Ingemerfa y Montajes, S 1L, the single shareholder of these compantes, has
pledged a collateral secunty arrangement consisling of 100% of the share capital of these companies
in favour of Otras Producciones de Energfa Fotovoltaica, S L U which 1s to be in place untl the total
amount of the acknowledged debt has been pad off

As a result of the operation, in the consoldated income statement for 2015 the parent company
Directors have reversed the imparment prowision for EUR 1250 thousand with a credit under
“Imparrment and results on disposals of financial instruments — Impairment and Losses” in the
consolidated income statement tor 2015 Accordingly, the parent company Directors consider that the
financial expense nvolved related to the current value of expected future monetary flows amount to
EUR 313 thousand, and have wrntten off the amounts receivable from the companies “Ibéricas”
proportionately for the same amount Finally, EUR 116 thousand has been transferred to “Short-term
financial Invesiment — Short-term loans to third parties™ in the consolidated balance sheet for 2015 1n
accordance with the payment schedule set up
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On March 13, 2015 the parent company granted a loan to a third-party {related to the company,
Proyectos Integrales Solares, § L U }, for EUR 137 thousand which matures in 2018 In 2015, EUR 34
thousand has been pad off This loan accrues interest at an annual rate of 4%, such that EUR &
thousand has been recorded with a credit under “Financsal income — marketable secunties and other
financial instruments” 1n the consolidated income statement for 2015

Other financial assets

At 31 December 2015 the Group has long-term financial investment totaling EUR 1784 thousand
{EUR 8 486 thousand n 2014), which relate to deposits whose matunty 1s more than one year and
pledged under a guarantee pohcy granted as secunty on the complance of specific assumed
obligations by the Group, mainly the guarantees granted to chents regarding the sale of parks {Note
24 1) The penod of the guaranteed obiigation 1s more than one year Similarly, at December 31, 2015
the Directors of the parent company have transterred EUR 4 114 thousand to “Non-current assets held
for sale” for financial investment which corresponds to deposits with a matunty of mare than one year
relating to those Spanish and ltaban companies for which the Group has a committed sales plan (Note
14)

These investments accrue interest according to market rates In 2015 the interest accrued on long and
short term financial investment Notes 111 and 11 2) amounts to EUR 129 thousand (EUR 188
thousand 1n 2014) approximately, which 1s recorded under “Finance income — marketable secunties
and other financial instruments — third parties” 1n the accompanying consolidated income statement for
2015 The income obtaned from the financial mvestment transferred to “Non-current assets held for
sale” amounts to EUR 9 thousand and 1s recorded with a credit under "Results for the year from
discontinued operations® in the accompanying consolidated income statement for 2015 (Note 14}

11 2 Short-term financial instruments

The classification by category of short-term financial instruments of the Group 1s as follows (i
thousands of euros)

31122015 |31 122014

- Trade and other receivables
Recervables, sales and rendering of services (Note 5 13) 6 137 18 327
Receivables, associate companues and related parties 173 310
Other receivables 1183 2513
- Investments 1n associate companies and related parties 1320 615
- Short-term financial invesiment 3 504 9 863
Total 12 317 31.628

Trade and other receivables

The Group records a provision for imparment for recevables on the basis of a specific analysis of
overdue balances and certain rates based on historical expenence

The movements for the provision of impairment of irade recevables, recorded as deductions the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet under “Trade recevables for sales and rendenng of services”
1s as follows
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Year 2015
Impatrment/
Reversals
Openming recogmzed for Closing
balance the year balance
Impairment for trading operations 3728 (139) 3 58%
Year 2014
Impairment/
Reversals
Opemng recogmzed for Closing
balance the year balance
Impairment for trading operations 3627 101 3728

In 2015 the Group has recorded an amount for EUR 139 thousand (provision of EUR 101 thousand in
2014) corresponding to the reversal in the provision for imparment in trade recelivables under the
heading “Losses, impairment and changes in trade provisions” in the consolidated income statement for
2015, regarding payments collected on amounts recewvable provisioned for in previous years

At 31 December 2015 the Group has no significant balances in currencies other than the Euro

The maximum exposure to credit nisk at the date the information 1s presented 1s the fair value of each of
the categones of the aforementioned receivables The Group does not hold any guarantee as insurance

In 2014, the Group, {specifically the company, Otras Participaciones Industnales, $ L acquired, from a
third party, the companies Haymaker Oakland, Ltd and Haymaker Natewocd, Litd in order to construct
two parks in the United Kingdom, and later sell therr invesiment and the parks The purchase pnce of
these compames amounted to EUR 1817 thousand and EUR 1041 thousand respectively and
approximately, of which a remaimng amount of EUR 340 thousand was pending payment al year end
was recorded under “Sundry payables” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet for 2014 This
amount has been collected in 2015 At year end 2014 the Group sold the shares 1t held for an amount for
EUR 5 120 thousand approximately, obtaining a gain of EUR 2 162 thousand recorded as a credit under
“impairment and results on disposals of financial instruments — results on disposals and other” n the
consolidated wncome statement for 2014 At December 31, 2014 there were outstanding recervable
amounts totaking EUR 2221 thousand under the heading "Trade and other recevables — other
recevables™ in the consolidated balance sheet for 2014 which have been collected in 2015 Accordingly,
as is described in Note 5 15 at year end 2014 the conditions were met to record the sales of the parks by
the method of completion rate In 2015, an amount for EUR 2 600 thousand has been recorded for the
percentage of completion raie for the parks with a credit under “Revenue — Sales™ In the accompanying
income statement for 2015 There are outstanding amounts to be collected on the sales of the parks
tataling EUR 2 mullion, which is recorded under “Trade and other recevables — Sales and rendenng of
services” in the consolidated balance sheet for 2015

At December 31, 2015 the Group has transferred EUR 5 7 mullion which was previously recorded under
“Trade and other recelvables” relating to Spanish and lalian electncity companies commtted 1o a sales
plan, to the heading "Non-current assets held for sale (Notes 521 and 14} This corresponds to
receivables for EUR 4 2 million for the sale of energy which at the time of presenting these financial
statements 1s fully collected plus EUR 15 milion in taxes, basically VAT which 1s expected to be
collected in the second quarter of 2016
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Short-term fimancial investment and deposits

At 31 December 2015 the Group holds vanous temporary hnancial mvestments (deposit or fixed term)
and restncted bank accounts totaling EUR 5 455 thousand (EUR 9 036 thousand in 2014) At December
31, 2015 the Directors of the parent company have transferred EUR 3 053 thousand to the item "Non-
current assels held for sale” for temporary financial mvestment The deposits are secured by a
guarantee policy {(Note 24 1)

Financial risk management

The Group's actvities are exposed to vanous types of financial nsk market nsk {including exchange rate
nsk, interest rate nsk and price nsk), credit nsk and hquidity nsk The Group's overall nsk management
program focuses on uncertainty In financial markets and seeks to mimmize the potential adverse impact on
its financial profitability

Responstbihty for financial risk management is controlied by the Group's Finance Depariment in accordance
with policies approved by Directors of the parent company This Department dentfies, assesses and
hedges financial exposure n close collaboration with the Greup's operational units The Group provides

policies for overall nsk management and written policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange
nsk, interest rate nsk, hquidity nsk, use of denvatives and non-denvatives and investing excess liquidity

12 1 Market risk

Exchange rate nsk

The Group operates internationally and 1s exposed 1o the foreign exchange risk ansing from currency
transactions The exchange rate nsk anses manly on business transactons abroad that are
denominated in a currency other than the euro which 1s the Group's functional currency

Prce nsk

The photovoltaic facilities constructed by the Group are governed in Spain and ltaly by the regulations
outlined i Note 1

Interest rate, cash flow and faw value nsk

Interest rate fluctuations affect the fair value of assets and habilities that bear a fixed rate of interest and
future flows of assets and habilites that bear a floating rate of interest

As the Group has no significant interest-bearnng assets, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes n market interest rates, except for deposits (note 11)

The Group's interest rate nsk anses mainly on debts with credt institutions Varable interest rate debls
with credit nshiutions expose the Group to the cash flow interest rate nsk
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12 2 Credit risk

Credit nsk denves from cash and cash equivalents, bank and financial mstitution deposits and trade and
other recevables, including outstanding receivables and transaction commutments Concerning banks
and financial insttutions, transactions are only performed with highly recognized quality entities, taking
into account past expenence and other factors Where there is no independent credit quahty rating of
customers, the Finance Department assesses the same, taking into account the customer's financial
posiion, past expenence and other factors It1s not Group policy to grant leng-term leans to customers,
except In exceptional circumstances

Maximum exposure 1o the credit nsk at the date of presentation of the financial assets I1s their carrying
value

12.3 Liquidify risk

The prudent management of ligidity nsk entals mamtaining sufficient cash and marketable secunties,
ensunng available funding in the form of sufficient committed credit faciiies and the ability to monetze
market posiions Given the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group's Finance
Department aims to ensure flexibility in financing through the avallability of committed credit lnes that
complemented the financing associated with the tum-key projects

Liquidity nsk {current assets less current habilities) 1s adequately managed by means of tight control
over working capital, lmits on the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution and permanent
momtoning of levels of borrawings and fund generation

12 4 Faur value estimation

The carrying value of trade receivables and payables I1s assumed to approximate therr fair value The
farr value of financial hiabiibes for financial reporting purposes 1s estimated by discounting future
contractual cash flows at the current market nterest rate that s avalable to the Group for similar
financial mstruments

13 Denvative financial instruments

The Group uses dervative financial instruments to cover the rnisks to which its activities, operations and
future cash flows are exposed The breakdown of these financial denvatives at year end 2015 and 2014 is
as follows (in thousands of euros)

Year 2015
Nomunal Fair value at
Amount value at 3112 2015
Classification Rate contracted Matunty 31122015 |[(Notes 14 & 18)
Interest rate Variable or
SWAP Hedged interest rate Fixed 7 950 30/06/2024 6632 (828)
Interest rate Variable or
SWAP Hedged nterest rate Fixed 7950 | 30/06/2024 6932 {804)
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Year 2014
Nomunal Fair value at
Amount Maturity value at 31122014
Classification Rate contracted date 31122014 {Note 18}
Vanable or
Interest rate SWAP  |Hedged nterest rate Fixed

7950 | 30/06/2024 7289 (962)

Tnterest rate SWAP  |Hedged interest rate | Vanable or
Fxed 7950 | 30/06/2024 7 289 (958)

14

The Group has complied with tha requirements ndicated in Note 58 regarding measurement rules in order
to classiy the aforementioned financial instruments as hedges

As 15 described 1n Notes 5 21 and 14, at December 31, 2015 the denvatives have been transferred to the
itern “Liabilties related to non-current assels held for sale” as they correspond {0 4 companies which Group
OPDE 1s committed to sefling Accordingly, accrued financial expense for EUR 352 thousand (EUR 332 in
2014) from SWAP flow settlements has been registered which has been reciassified under “Resuits from
discontinued operations in 2015 (Note 14) in the accompanying consolidated income statement for 2015

Non-current assels held for sale

As 1s described m Notes 1,2 ¢,7 and 8, at December 31, 2015 and at the time of presenting the consctdated
financial statements for 2015, the Group 1s commitied to a sales plan for the subsidiary companies,
Promociones Fotovollaicas Juglans, S LU, Promociones Fotovoltaicas Juniperus, SL U, Promociones
Eotovoltaicas Laurus, S LU, Promociones Fotovoltaicas Pinus, S LU, Cantliana Fotovoltaica, SL U,
Elogia Trans Uno, SLU, Grupo Bésico Delta 2, 5L U, Eolca La Lora, SLU and subsidianes,
Ribaforadas 3, S R L, Ribaforada 7, S R L, Piemonte Eguzki 2, S RL y Piemonte Eguzki 8, S R L, which
would mean losing control of these companies and which 1s expected to be finalized in 2016 Given that the
requirerments estabhshed by the Spanish Char of Accounts and the Rules for the Presentation of Financial
Statements (NOFCAC) are met for these assets 10 be classified as a disposal group, at year end 2015 the
assets and habilimes of the subsidianies have been fully cansolidated and have been reclassified under "Non-
current assets held for sale” and “Liabilities related to non-current assets hetd for sale (Note 2 )

On March 31, 2018 a final Sales and Purchase Agreemeni was signed for the sale of the subs:diary
companies, Promotiones Fotovoltaicas Juglans, SL U, Promociones Fotovoltaicas Jurvperus, SL U,
Promociones Fotovoltaicas taurus, SLU, Promociones Fotovoltaicas Pinus, SLU, Cantllana
Fotovoltaica, S L U, Elogia Trans Uno, S L U, Grupo Bésico Delta 2, SLU y Eoblica La Lora, SLU and
subsidiaries, without any changes being made to the inmal offer, subject to cenain clauses which are
expected to be met durng the second quarter of 2016 when the final transfer and sale of these assets will
finally take place The pnce offered does not imply any accounting iImpairment on the assets of the Group

On February 10, 2016 the parties signed a Sale and Purchase agreement, subject to certain conditions
which the Directors expect to be met and thus the sale will be finaized in the second quarter of 2016 of the
companies,Ribaforadas 3, SR L, Ribaforada 7, SRL, Piemonte Equzki 2, S RL y Piemonte Eguziu 6,
SRL
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The detailed breakdown of equity elements under this heading 1s as follows

Thousands of euros

Intangible assets (Note 7) 129
Property, plant and equipment (Note 8) 85219
Long-term financial mnvestment (Note 11 1) 4114
Deferred tax assets (Note 20 4) 1219
Trade and other recervables {Notes 11 2 & 20) 5673
Short-term financial mnvestment (Note 11 2) 3053
Accruals 267
Cash 654
Total classified under non-current assets held for sale 101 498
Long-term provistons (Note 17) 1699
Long-term bank borrowings (Note 18} 30114
Long-term finance lease payables (Note 18) 36 687
Long-term derivatives (Notes 13 & 18) 1454
Short-term bank borrowmgs (Note 18) 8038
Short-term finance lease payables (Note 18) 2141
Short-term derivatves (Notes 13 and 18} 178
Other financial habilities (Note 18) 6
Trade and other payables (Note 20) 733
Total classified under habilities related to non-current assets

held for sale 81 050
Net Asset Total of the subsidiaries 20 448

43
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The breakdewn of the income and expense recognized in the consohdated income statement relating to the

aforementioned subsidianes for the years 2015 and 2014 15 as follows

2015 2014

Revenue 16 369 15526
Procurements {(538) -

Other operating income 221 1002
Other operating expense (1 485} (1721)
Amortization of property, plant and equipment {Notes 7 & 8) 4127 (4 126)
Impairment and result on disposal of fixed assets (Note 8) 335 (108)
Other non-core income and expense 8 (714)
Total operating result 10.783 9 859
Financial income (Note 11 1) 9 15
Financial expense (Note 13) (4 316) (4 669)
Total financial result (4307) (4 654)
Income tax (1 604) 19
Total result 4.872 5224

As a consequence of the sale pnce and the net value of these assets, the Directors of the parent company
have recorded a reversal for impairment of property, plant and equipment for these companies, which had

been recorded at EUR 335 thousand in previous years

The breakdown of cash flows stemming from the subsidianes which at December 31, 2015 have been
reclassified under “Non-current assets held for sale” and "Liabilites relating to non-current assets held for

sale, 15 as follows

Thousands of Euros
2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activiies 8 575 8 235
Cash flows from investing activities - -
Cash flows from financing activities (11990) | (7521)
Cash flows from discontuiued operalions {3 415) 714

Inventories

The breakdown of this item In the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2015 and 2014 1s as follows

{thousands of euros)

31122015 3112 2014
Goods purchased for resale 1698 553
Raw matenals and other supplies 235 343
Sem finished goods 25438 3735
Prepayments to suppliers 8 1232
Total 27 379 5 863

Goods purchased for resale basically includes photovoltaie matenals which are pending instaliation or sale
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At 31 December 2015, under "Raw matenals” the Group has recorded a prowisien amounting fo EUR 672
thousand against possible impairment (EUR 482 thousand in 2014) The changes or losses under this item
for 2015 and 2013 ar4 as follows (thousands of eurgs)

Year 2015,
Opening balance | Impairment | Closing balance
Impairment of goods for resale 482 190 672
Total 482 190 672

Year 2014
Opemng balance | Impairment | Closing balance
Imparrment of goods for resale 461 21 482
Total 461 21 482

Semi-firushed products mainly include solar faciiies in the process of completion which have not yet been
sold at 31 December 2015 Until they are sold, finished faciities generate energy In accordance with the
regime descnbed 1n Note 1

At 2015 year end, the Group has completed construction of 3 photovoltaic parks in the UK (15Mw) Two
parks were already connected to the gnd (10 Mwj} at the end of the year and the other was connected in
February 2016 These parks are expected (o be sold in the second quarter of 2016

At 2014 year end, the Group was construcling a photovoltaic park in Mountmill {UK), which was completed
In 2015 and been sold {Note 6) At 2014 year end, the Group company, OPDE UK, itd, made prepayments
to supphers totaling EUR 1 217 thousand which came into being In the first quarter of 2015

The Group has taken out a number ¢f insurance policies to cover nsks relating to ventones The coverage
provided by these policies 1s considered to be sufficent

inventories associated with quarantees

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, there are no commitments to arrange guarantees in rem over photovoltaic
parks

Equity
16 1 Caputal

At December 31, 2015 and 2014 the share capital of the parent company consists of 211,844 fully
subscribed and paid shares, with a par value of ELR 10 each
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At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the distnbution of the shares held by the Parent Company's
sharehaolders ts as follows

Number of % Interest
shares held
Aldrovi, S L 89 356 42,18%
Marearoja [niernacional, S L B3 356 42.18%
Jalasa Ingenierda, SL 33132 15,64%
211.844 100,00%

16.2 Reserves

The breakdown of the figures In Reserves is as follows {thousands of euros)

2015 2014
Legal reserve 602 602
Voluntary reserves 62 400 63779
Total Parent Company Reserves 63 002 64 381
Reserves in Consohidated Companies (3 546) (7 517)
Total Consolidated Reserves (3 546) (7 517
Total Reserves 59 456 56 864

Legal reserve

Under the Consolidated Spanish Companies Law, 10% of net profit for each year must be fransferred to
the legal reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches at least 20% of the share capital Such

reserve can be used to increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below

10% of the ncreased share capital amount Otherwise, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of share

capital, it can only be used to offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves are nol available for

that purpose

Within the consolidated companies reserves there are legal reserves totaling EUR 2 116 thousand at

year end 2015 (EUR 1 617 thousand in 2014}

Voluntary reserves

In 2015, the General Shareholders Meeting agreed to disinbute dividends amounting to EUR 2 800

thousand charged under “Voluntary Reserves”, which at December 31, 201515 lully paid

In 2014, the General Shareholders Meefing agreed to distnibute dividends amounting to ELUR 2 800

thousand charged under "Voluntary Reserves”, which at December 31, 2014 was fully paid

These are unresincted
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47

The movement under the heading of minonty interests of the Group for 2015 and 2014 s as follows

{thousands of euros})

2015 2014

Opemng balance 776 170
Results (4) (56)
Changes 1n the consolidation scope

- Subgroup OPDE Solare (Note 2 ¢} - 912
- Render Energfas renovables, S L (Note 2 ¢} (874) -
Promnso Hellas - (250}
Other 304 -
Closing balance 202 776

A breakdown by balance of the minonty interests of the Group according o the equity interest held in

the following subsidiary companies 1s as follows

2015 2014
Render Energfas Renovables, 5 L 88 635
Mecasolar Hellas 114 141
202 776

17 Provisions and contingencies

The breakdown of the prowvisions |n the consolidated balance sheet at year end 2015 and 2014 s as follows

(thousands of euros)

31 12 2015 31122014
Long-term provisions
Trade provisions {Note 3 14} 426 486
Tax provision 149 149
Provision for dismantling of parks (Notes 5 4 & 8) 264 1922
Provision of bonuses (Note 22 3) 227 117
Qther provisions 56 47
1.122 2721
Short-term provisions
Trade provisions 98 -
Other provisions 532 66
630 66

Long-term provisions

As 1s descnbed in Note 14, the Directors of the parent company have transfered the assets and lLabilities of
certain photovoltaic parks to the items, “Non-current assets held for sale” and “"Liabilities related to non-
current assets held for sale” as they consider therr sale to be highly probable As such, EUR 1 899 thousand
In provisions has been transferred under the concept of dismantling of parks (Note 14}

In 2015 the Group has made a prowision for EUR 110 thousand, charged under “Qther operating expense -
External services™ in the consolidated income statement for 2015 for personnel boruses

In 2014 the Group made a provision for EUR 117 thousand, charged under “Other operafing expense -
External services™ in the consolidated income statement for 2014 for personnel bonuses
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Similarly, it made a provision of EUR 149 thousand, charged under “Other operating expense - Taxes™ in the
consolidated Income statement for 2014 as the best estmate made by the Directars of the parent company
mn relation to the payment of taxes in ltaly which the company will have to bear i the coming years In
additon, a best estimate provision was made for EUR 478 thousand relating to the dismanting of ltaban and
Sparnish parks dus to the introduction of new legislation in both countnes {Note 1)

The Group offers warranties on its manufactured goods which range from 3 to 10 years The provisian for
warranties 1s established on the basis of the historical record of repairs

In 2015, the Group has made a provision of EUR 71 thousand for a guarantee 1o {hird parhes on sold goods

Short-term provisions

In 2013, the Group signed a Purchase-Sale Agreement on jand to be used for the construction of a
photovoltaic park, the seller being Pradiel Proyectos de Instalaciones Eléctncas, S L A bank guarantee was
set up 1n favor for EUR 530 thousand approximately

In 2015 non-comphances have ansen regarding vanous secured obligations, mainly relating to existing
defects of the land Consequently, and subsequent o envronmental studies performed by third parties
unrelated to the Group, the Group has called upon the bank guarantee, collecting EUR 530 thousand
recorded under cash, and recogrized a provision for the same amount as coverage for the expense to be
incurred by the short-term remedial action on the land

The exit from the consolidation scope of Proyectos integrales solares, SL U, in 2014 led to a reduction of
EUR 163 thousand in short-term provisions (Note 1} In addition, the Group company Mecasolar US A
reversed a provision amounting to EUR 251 thousand with a credit under “Excess provisions” In the
consclidated income staternent for 2014 after recening payment of the amounts provisioned for in previous
years which were for the costs of a park s repairs which the company did not hinally bear

in 2014 the Group reversed the heading "Excess provisions” in the consolidated income statement for 2014
with a credit for EUR 543 thousand regarding taxes which were not required by the Public Authonties

Payables (long and short-term)

18 1 Long-term financial liabiities

The balance under “Long-term payables” at year end 2015 and 2014 1s as follaws (in thausands of

euros)
3112 2015
Finance lease
Bank habilities
borrowings (Note 10) Total
Creditors and payables 207 21313 21 520
Total 207 21313 21 520
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31122014
Fmance lease
Bank Labihities Detivauves
borrowings {Note 10) {Note 13} Total
Creditors and payables 27197 62 061 1517 90 775
Total 27.197 62.061 1517 90 775

The breakdown of the items In "Long-term payables” by matunty is as follows (in thousands of euros)

31 12 2015
2021 and
2017 2018 2019 2020 following Total
Bank borrowings 92 92 23 - - 207
Finance lease creditors (Notel0) 1375 1442 1512 1585 15 399 21313
Total balance 2015 1467 1534 1535 1.585 15 399 21 %
Bank borrowings (Note 15) 1761 1 867 1987 2136 22 363 30114
Finance lease creditors (Note 14) 2252 2 353 2 459 2567 27 056 36 687
Denvatives {Notes 13 and 14) 395 367 347 345 1454
Total habilities related to non-current assets
held for sale 4 408 4 587 4.793 5048 49 419 68 255
Total 5875 6121 6.328 6 633 64 818 89 775
(") The total amount of the amount owed is referenced to vanable interest rates in 2015 and 2915
31122014
2020 and
2016 2017 2018 2019 following Total

Bank borrowings 1353 1448 1544 1577 21275 27197

Finance lease creditors

(Note 10) 3 460 3654 3821 3948 47128 62 061

Denvatives (Note 13) 350 323 295 276 273 1517

5163 5425 5660 5 851 68 676 90 775

At 31 December, 2015 the Group has taken out syndicated financing totaling EUR 37 842 thousand (EUR
42783 thousand in 2014) with different financial entites to finance certain Operating solar parks These
liablitties have been transferred to the heading "Liabilities related to non-current assets held for sale” as they
belong to Spanish companies which are going to exit Grupo OPDE in 2016 {Notes 1,2 ¢ and 14) These
coniracts include a senes of conditions and commitments undertaken by the Group, notably amongst others

—~  Mantaining stablg income and expense,
~  Maintaining certain ratios pledging payment of the debt and equity solvency,

—~  Maintamning reserves accounts for the payment of the debt,
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_  Other commitments which manly affect the unrestricted availability of the cash generated by the
parks and the availability of asset elements

At 31 December, 2015 one of the financial ratios of the financing contracts has not been met, such that,
according to the contracts, this 1s one of the causes for advance setllement In accordance with that which1s
laid out in the Official Gazette n?81/2010, consultation 6 regarding the classiication of long term [oans, given
thal the contract demands early settlement due to non-compliance with certain conditions, the Directors of
the parent company have reclassified to short-term the total amount of the amount owed which matures in a
perod of more than 12 months amounting 10 EUR 54 millon, albeit, they consider that under no
circumstances will the Banks reguire advance repayment of such amount This amount 1s classified under
the item “Liabiliies relating to non-current assets held for sale” {Note 14)

Al 31 December, 2014 one of the financial ratios of the three financing conlracts was not met, such that,
according to the contracts, this was one of the causes for advance setflement In accordance with that which
s laid out In the Official Gazetie n?81/2010, consultation & regarding the classification of long term loans,
given that the contract demands early setflement due to non-comphance with certain conditions, the
Directors of the parent company reclassified to short-lerm the total amount of the amount owed which
matured i a penod of more than 12 months which amounted to EUR 13 3 milion, albert, they considered
that under no circumstances would the Banks require advarnce repayment of such amount At December 31,
2015 this now meets the requirements and 1s classiied under “Liabilities related to non-current assets
available for sale” (Nole 14)

On July 28, 2014 Triodos Bank informed the Group that after the passing of new legisiation {Note 3)
indicating that the changes introduced affected the base upon which the financing was granted, and for
which they were susceptible to a cause of early matunty and/or the generation of the advance amortization
commitments provided for 1n the contract Accordingly, In virtue of this notification any payment charged to
the financing accounts was blocked which was not related to ithe payment of essential operating and
maintenance costs of the faciities On December 31, 2014 the bank confirmed to the Group that 1t did not
require the early repayment, erther total or parhal, as a conseguence of the approval of the new legislation
Consequently, the Directars of the parent company maintaned the classifications of the bank borrowings
based on the matunty dates intially established in the contracts, as they considered that the Group met all
the condtions and commitments undertaken in the syndicated loan, and they considered that early
settlement of the loan would not be required

At December 31, 2015 the Group has a financing contract with ¢redit Institutions under “Bank borrowings™ in
the balance sheet for 2015 The amount of the long-term loan pending payment 1s EUR 207 thousand The
intial amount of the loan was EUR 500 thousand and was granted by the Caja Rural de Navarra to the
Group company, OPDE O&M, SL fo finance the purchase of land in Cantillana This loan accrues an
annual interest rate of 4 35%, and 1s paid off In regular monthly instalments and matures in March 2019
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18 2 Short-term financtaf habiiities

The balance for the accounts under * Short-term payables — Bank borrowings® at year end 2015 and 2014
15 as follows {in thousands of euros)

31122015 31122014

Bank borrowings 1 084 16 528
Other Joans received - 94
Accrued interest payable - 407
Dervatives - 403
Credit lines 288 4158
Finance lease liabihues 1 282 3 331
Other financial liabiliies 39 96

2 693 25017

Credit ines and other

At December 34, 2015 the credit hnes mit amount to EUR 16 million {EUR 14 milon in 2014}, while the
amount not used totals EUR 16 milion {EUR 9 8 million in 2014} Interest accrues al market rates linked to
Eunbor

In additon the Group has a credit ine, which includes confirming, amounting to EUR 5 million, of which the
amount not used at December 31, 201515 EUR 4 7 million (EUR 2 3 million at December 31, 2014}

Similatly, the Group has a credit ine for EUR 2 millon with the Banco Popular {which has not been used), as
coverage on any non-payment of promissory notes or for prepayments of credits

At 31 December 2015 the Group does not have any signhificant payable balances in foreign currency

18 3 Informatron regarding payment deferrals to supplers Additional
Provision n23 “Duty of disclosure” of the Law 15/2010, of July 5.

Set out below 1s the information required by Additronal Provision N2 3 of the Act 15/2010, of July 5 {(modified
through the Second Final Provision Act 31/2014 of December 2014}, drawn up n accordance with the ICAC
(Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute) Resolution of January 29, 20186, regarding the information 1o be
includad in financial statement notes relating to the average payment penod of suppliers in trade operations

In accordance with the sole additional Provision of the Resolution mentioned above, as this is the first year
of application comparative information 1s not presented

2015
Days
Average payment penod to suppliers 35
Rauo of paid operations 20
Ratio of operations pending payment 144
Thousands of Euros
Total payments made 53711
Total payments pending 7670
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In accordance with the ICAG Resolution, the calculation of the average payment period to suppliers s based
on trade operations relating to the delivery of goods or rendering of services accrued from the date en which
Act 31/2014, of December 3 came into effect

Supplters are deemed to be, solely for purpases of providing the information set out by this Resolution, those
trade creditors with amounts payable to suppliers for goods and services, included under “Trade and other
payables — Supplers™ and “Trade and other payables — Group companies and associates suppliers” in the
current habilities of the consolidated balance sheet

The “Average payment period to supphers” 1s taken as the time which elapses between the delivery of goods
or the rendenng of services barne by the supphier and the payment made on the operation

The maximum legal tme applied to the Group in 2014/2015 according to Act 3/2004 of December 29, by
which the measures combating late payment in trade operations were set up, and in accordance with the
transifory provisions set up by Act 15/2010 of July 5, was 60 days, until the publication of Act 11/2013 of July
26 which reduced the maximum legal time to 30 days from the date of its inception to date {unless the
conditions set out in this act are met, m which case the maximum payment penod Is increased to 60 days}

Short-term accruals

Assel accruals mamly cover insurance company expense relating o tracker manufactunng warranties
granted to final customers (generally 10 years), and to accruals relatng to the maintenance of solar
photovoltaic parks

Liability accruals mainly cover the amounts invoiced to final customers relating to the previously mentioned
manufaciuring warranties and to accruals relaling 10 the maintenance of solar photovoltaic parks

Pubhe authorities and tax situation

The information regarding current balances with Public Authorities in the accompanying consohdated
balance sheet at 31 December 201515 as follows

20 1 Current balances with Public Authontles

Debtors balances
3112 2015 31122014
Tax Authority debtor for VAT 2442 5623
Tax Authonty debtor for corporate income tax 731 855
Other receivables 156 366
Total 33 6 844
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Creditors balances
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31122015 31122014
Tax Authonty creditor for VAT 2748 676
Tax Authonty creditor for corporate 1ncome tax 129 1996
Social Secunty authontties creditors 105 74
Other payables 128 179
Total 3110 2925

20 2 Reconciliation between the consolidated result and taxable base

The reconciliation between the consolidated result for the year and the taxable base for
ingome tax Is set out below (In thousands of euros}

corporate

2015 2014

Consolidated result for the year from continuing operatons (before tax) 738 8 690
Consolidated result for the year from discontinued operations (before tax) 6476 -
Total pre-tax result 7.214 § 69
Permanent differences 2715 15%
Temporary diffrences

From consolidation adjustmenis 6 065 (13 629

From individual compames (11 296) 10 930
Taxable Base 4698 6 150

Temporary and permanent adjusiments mainly include adjusiments denved {rom margins and
adjustments relating to operations between Group companies and from adjustments relating to the
portfolle Vanous companies of the group who have a similar tax address to the parent company In
2015 have taken the tax regime for fiscal consolidation contained in the Regional Law 24/1996 for
corporate Income tax, with OPDE Investment Espana as the parent company of the group

In accordance with the Regional Law 29/2014 of December 24 regarding fiscal reform and economic
activity incentives, from January 1, 2015 the Regional Law 2411996 of December 30 was modified,
which had been applicable to the Group regarding Navarre Corporate Tax Amongst other measures,
the tax rate was reduced from 30% to 25% and the period for the application of deductions, including
those outstanding at January 1, 2016 was increased from 10 lo 15 years In accordance with the
Regionat Law 23/2015, of December 28 regarding fiscal reform and economic activity incentives, with
effect from January 1, 2015 the Regional Law 24/1996 of December 30 was madified, which had been
applicable to the Group regarding Navarre Corporate Tax Amongst other 1ssues, the tax rate ha
increased from 25% to 28% As such, the Group has adjusted its deferred tax assets and habiliies to
these new tax rates

Al 31 December 2015 there are available tax losses amounting to EUR 12 239 thousand {(EUR 13 340
thousand in 2014} of which EUR 6 895 thousand (EUR 3 505 thousand in 2014) have been recogmzed
based on expectations of recovery Tax losses manly relate 10 fiscal loss 1n 2013 and 2012 whose
application period 1s 14 and 13 years respectively
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20 3 Reconciliation between the accounting resuit and corporate income tax

The reconcihiation between the accounting result and Corporate Income Tax expense Is as follows (in

thousands of euros)

2015 2014
Result hefore tax 7214 8 690
Permanent differences 2715 9
Tax rate apphcable 1in each country (1 688) (2 740)
Deferred tax assets/habihues (*) (122) (266)
Adjustment for previous years seltlements 471 -
Activation of tax loss carryforwards 1125 -
Offsetung of tax loss carryforwards (277} -
Other 209 -
Total (282) (3 006)

{*) Includes the effect of updating deferred 1ax assels and liabikies resulting from the change in the tax

rate stated in Note 20 2

20 4 Breakdown of current and deferred tax

The breakdown of current and deferred tax 1s as follows (in thousands of euros)

2015 2014
Current tax {161) (2 156)
Deferred tax (121) (850)
Total tax expense (282) (3 006

20 5 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax breaks down as follows

Thousands of euros

2015 2014

Deferred tax assets

- Temporary differences and other 9101 11671
- Unused tax losses brought forward 1855 5289
Total continuing operations 10 956 12.200
- Temporary differences and other 1143 -

- Unused tax losses brought forward 76 -

Total discontinued operations 1.219 -

Deferred iax assets and habilities are offsel If at the time the Group has an enforceable nght to offset
the amounts recognized and intends to settle the net amount, or to realize the asset and settle the

hability simultanecusly

Deferred tax assets are recognized tor tax loss carryforwards to the extent that the reahzation of the

related tax beneht through future taxable profits of the Group 1s probable

At 31 December, 2015 there are tax deductions pending apphication totaling EUR 3 372 thousand
{EUR 3410 thousand in 2014} which have not been activated, of which EUR 3 123 thousand
corresponds to subsidiaries which the Group has committed to a sales plan, as Is described In Note 14
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20 6 Deferred tax habilities

The breakdown of deferred taxes is as follows

Thousands of euros
2014 2013
Deferred tax habihities
- Temporary differences 242 508
Total 242 508

20 7 Tax inspection and years pending inspection

Under current legistation, taxes carnot be deemed to have been defimitively settled until the tax returns
filed have been Inspected by the tax authenties or until the four-year-statute-of-imitations penod has
expired At 2015 year end the Group has 2012 and onwards available for review for corporate tax and
for the other main taxes applicable However, in 2014 an inspechon began of Corporate Tax for 2009
and VAT for 2010 This inspection ended in 2015 and has resulted in a fine for EUR 140 thousand for
the group, which has been charged under “Other operaling expense — Taxes” in the accompanying
consolidated 1ncome statement for 2015 Similarly, the Group must pay off a tax debt for EUR 329
thousand, of which EUR 279 thousand relales to an excess In deductible VAT rates on Internal
operations recognized in the tax returns of 2010, and EUR 50 thousand relates to the interest payments
on the uncovered tax rate

As a result of the different interpretations to which current tax legislaton applicable to the Group's
operations lends itself, contingent habilities could anse which cannot be cbjectively quantified However,
the opinion of the Directors of the parent company Is that the possibility of any such contingent habilties

ansing 15 remote, and in any event the taxable amount denved would not matenally aftect the
accompanying financial statements

21 Income and expense
21.1 Revenue

Net turnover frem the Group's ordinary activities may be analyzed gecgraphically as follows

To
2015 2014
Domestic 20% 14%
Foreign 80% 86%
100 % 100 %

The breakdown of the net turnover for 2015 and 2014 by line of the activity 1s as follows

2015 2014
Sale of photovoltaic materials - 17%
Assembly of trackers 8% 1%
Rendering of services 81% 56%
Sale of energy and other 11% 26%
100% 100%
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21 2 Procurement and supplies
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The breakdown of “Supples - Consumption of goods for resale and raw matenals and other
consumable matenals® " for 2015 and 2014 1s as follows {in thousands of euros})

2015 2014
Purchases 5395 19 494
Changes 1n 1nventones {1227y (816)
Impairment (Note 15) 190 -
Consumption of goods for resale, raw materials and other consumables 4358 18 678

21 3 Personnel costs

The breakdown of “Personnel costs” in the consolidated income statement for 2015 and 2014 15 as

follows {in thousands of euros)

2015 2014
Wages, salaries and sumilar 3237 3417
Severance payments 98 372
Soctal secunty costs 695 758
QOther 18 23
4 048 4,570

As is mdicated 1n Note 22 3, the Group has set up vanable long-term remuneraton agreements with
certain employees based on reaching certain objectives

The average number of employees by category during the year was as follows

N° Personnel
2015 2014
Management 5 10
Quahfied staff, specialists and admin 60 68
Sales staff - 4
Skilled and unskilled workers 7 6
72 88

The average number of special needs employees 1s 1 (1 1n 2013), n the category of skilled and

unskilled workers

The distnbution by gender and category of the Group's personnel at year end 1s as follows

2015 2014
Male | Female | Total Male | Female | Total
Management 5 - 5 4 - 4
Qualified staff, spectalists and admin 36 21 57 33 23 56
Skilled and unskilled workers 5 - 5 3 2 5
46 21 67 40 25 65




57

L
opde

Grupo Opde

21 4 Other operating expense

The heading “External services” In the consohdated income statement for 2015 and 2014 basically
includes transport costs for photovoltaic matenals to point of sate, msurance premiums and independent

professional services amongst others
The Group has recorded on amount of EUR 552 thousand (EUR 370 thousand in 2014} relating to

charges on recelved lease payments (Note 10)

21 5 Impalrment and results on disposals of fixed assets

Thousands of euros
2015 2014
Imparment and results on disposals of fixed assets
Impairment and losses (Note 8) (34) {61)
Other (Notes 7 & 8) - 24
Total continuing operations (34) (37

22 Related-party transactions and balances
22.1 Related-party lransactions

Related-party transactions which have been carned out in 2015 and 2014 are detaled below

Year 2013
Income from Non-core and
rendering of other sundry External
SErvices ncome 5CIVICES
Associales
Renter Gestiones, S L () 721 81 9
Related parties
Proyectos Integrales Solares, S L 10 - 1
Proyectos Integrales Solares UK, § L 53 - -
Proyectos Integrales Solares USA, S L 2 - -
787 81 10

{*) Not included in the consolidation scope in accordance with the information in Note 2 ¢

Year 2014
income from Non-core and
rendenng of other sundry Extemal
Serviges mcome SETVICES
Associates
Renter Gesuones, S L (*) 776 34 9
Related parties
Proyectos Integrales Sojares, S L - 326 -
776 360 9

{*) Not inciuded i the consofidation scope in accordance with the information in Note 2 ¢

Rendenng of services mainly refates to the mamntenance work carmed out m the Almaraz park
Extremadura, whilst services received relate mainty to maintenance work camed out in photovaltaic
parks
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Transactons exist with companies relaied to the Directors of the parent company relating to
management services rendered n 2015, which total EUR 1 060 thousand (EUR 1069 thousand in

2014) The breakdown 1s as follows {thousands of euros)

2015 2014
Solintel M&P, S L {Note 22 3) 844 819
Aldrown, SL 72 72
Jalasa Ingemierfa, S L. 72 72
Marearo)a Internacional, S L 72 72
Aste Consultores, S L - 26
Agoranet 2000, S L - 8
Total 1060 1069

Note 22 3 detalls the additional agreements made with certain members of the Governing Body and
Directors of the parent company

22 2 Related-party balances

The breakdown of related-party balances at year end 2015 15 as follows (in thousands of euros)

3112 2015

Recervables | Payables and
and loans loauns
granted recetved
Associales
Renter Gestiones, S L (**) 156 (8)
Related parues
Proinso Hellas, S A i (33)
Proyectos Integrales Solares, S L 885 -
Proyectos Integrales Solares UK, SL (%) 3 -
Proyectos Integrales Solares USA, S L 8 -
Solintel M&P, S L - (507)
1058 (548)

(*)This amauni 15 ncluded in the tem “Investment in avsociaie compantes and related
parties - Loans to companies in the consolidared balance sheet for 2015
{(**} Not 1ncluded 1n the consoldation scope 1n accordance with the mfurmation in Note

2¢
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3112 2014
Receivables | Payables and
and loans loans
granted recerved
Associates
Renter Gesuones, S L 299 -
Related-parties
Prowso Hellas, § A 1 (38)
Proyectos Integrales Solares, SL (*) 863 3]
Promso UK il -
Proinso USA - (£)]
Solinte! M&P, S L - (507)
1174 {853)

(*)F10m thus fotel amount EUR 326 thousand are ncluded under the heading * Trade -
sales and services rendered’ 1 the consolidated balance sheet for 2014 and EUR 527
thousand wunder “Invesimenis n assoctates and related parties — Loans to compantes” in
the consolidared balance sheet for 2014

{**)Not included in the consolidation scape in acenrdance with the formation n Note
2c

22 3 Remuneration of the govermng body and senior management of the Group

Remuneration of the governing body

The members of the Governing Body of the Parent Company have not accrued nor received any
remuneration 10 2015 and 2014 In addition, no advances, loans, pensions, relirement awards or special
indemnites have been granted

In addition the Company has set up vanable addiional remuneration agreements with certain Directors
of Grupo OPDE At December 31, 2015 the heading “Payables to associate companies and related
parties™ tn the current liabilities of the consolidated balance sheet for 2015 records EUR 507 thousand
which corresponds to the best estimate of the amount accrued n 2015 for the agreements mention
above (Notes 221 & 22 2) The amount accrued for this concept in 2014 which totaled EUR 507
thousand has been paid in 2015

The Group analyzed the governing bodies of the Group 1n 2014 and took the decision to only consider
the Admmstrative Board as the Governing Body, as it is the Board which takes the most important
business decisions and analyzes the decisions taken by the Company s managers The amounis
accrued by companies related to the members of the Governing Body for these management services 18
detalled in Note 22 1 (there are no additional amounts accrued than those related partes stated and
broken down in Note 22 1)

For information purposes Aldrow, S L, Jalasa, S L and Marearoja, 5L are companes related to three
members of the Governing Body, and have rendered and billed their services to the Parent Company
Mention 15 also made of the fact that Solinte! M&P S L, 1s a company also related to a member of the
Governing Body in 2015 All these companies render services {0 the Parent Company on the basis of
signed agreements (Note 22 1}

22 4 Information related to conflict of interest situations with Directors

At 2015 year end, neither the Joint Admimstrators of the Company nor persons related to them,
accordance with Article 231 of the Company Capital Act have notified the Shareholders Meeting of any
confhct of Interest situation, either direct or indirect, which they may have with the interests of the parent
company
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Environmental disclosures

In its overall operations the Group takes into account environmental protection laws ("environmental laws")
The Group considers that it largely meets anvironmental regulations and has procedures i place designed
to encourage and assure such comphance

The Group has taken the necessary measures lo protect and improve the environment and to minimize
environmental impact, f applcable, in compliance with current environmental legislaton In 2015 and
previous years, the Group has made no environmental investments and nor has it incurred expenses for the
protection and Improvement of the environment In addition, 1t has not considered It necessary to establish a
provision for enwirenmental habiliies and charges since there are no contingencies relaled to the
envtronmental protection and improvement or environmental habilihes

QOther information

24 1 Contingencles

Contingent llabihties

The Group has no contingent habilities ansing in the ordinary course of business which are expected to
tngger significant labilties

Bank guarantees

The Group has guarantees with third parbies connected with solar facilittes amounting to EUR 65
million (EUR @ 9 million in 2014) relaing mainly to the guaraniees on the provisional receipt of the
photovoltaic facihties built and guarantees vis-a-vis municipal authonties for work to be camed out

Of the EUR 6 5 million, the greater part relates to guarantees granted by the BBVA ({with which the
Group has a guarantee kne for EUR 6 million) The remaining amount relates to iIndividual guarantees
(without entering N a bankers line), more specifically, EUR 0 4 million {with Banco Santander) and
EUR 0 1 million (Caja Rural de Navarra)

24 2 Guararitees
Guarantees under sales contracts and completion of solar faciitres (turn-key}

The Group guarantees the repar of any defects and flaws n the execution and terminatton of the
construction works on the solar plants, provided that they are directly attnbutable to such works, for two
years from the final delivery of the photovoltaic solar plant

The warranty borne by the Group with respect to the products and matenals supphed for the
gonstruction of the plants will be made up of and hmited to the warranty granted by the manufacturers
of such matenals In addition, the Company offers assembly warranties although to date there have
been no cases of expense for warranties

At the year end the Group records ne provisions for these warranties since there 1s no significant
expenence In this respect and taking into account that the warranties provided by the Company s part
manufacturers would sufficiently cover any incident




61

—L—
opde

Grupo Opde

24 3 Auditors fees

In 2015 auditors fees related to account auditing senaces and other services rendered by the auditor oi
the consoldated financial statements of the Group, Deloitte, S L, and by companies belonging to the
Deloitte network, as well as fees for services rendered on the individual financial statements of
consoldated compames and companies related by control, joint ownership or management The
breakdown 1s as follows(in thousands of euros)

Year 2015
Account auditing Other services
Deloitte 67 57
Total 67 57
Year 2014
Account auditing Other services
Deloitte 96 143
Total 96 143
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24 4 Segmented information
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Financial information of the Group broken down by operating segment at December 31, 2015 1s as

follows
Thousands of Euros
Rendering of
Assembly of | services— |Sale of energy | Consohidation
Item trackers turn-key and other adjustments Total
Revenve
- External chients 2 281 24013 5250 - 31 544
- Inter-segmental 123 1692 - (1799 16
Changes 1n inventones of finished
goods and work 1n progress (26) 21729 21703
Procurements and supphes (1 744y (41 827) {1 820) 1 575 (43 816)
Personnel expense (766) (3282) - - (4 048)
Depreciation of fixed assets (206) (282) (2 856) 1604 (1 740)
Losses, impairment and changes in
p]’OVlSIOl‘lS
- Current (451} (2 595) (1343) 225 (4 164)
- Non current {40% 909 3028 (3 349) 548
Qperating result {829) 357 2259 (1.744) 43
Financial income 65 4 848 29 (3 907) 1035
Financial expense (106) (2712) (4 266) 5756 (1328)
Other - 088 - - 988
Pre-tax result (870} 3481 (1.978) 105 738
Segment assets 2357 211420 66475 (188 360) 91 892
Segment habihities 1412 84 050 75315 (116 223) 44 554
Net cash flows of activities (*)
- Operating (669) (1867) 10 574 (3 550) 4 488
- Investing 759 10 095 - (3 988) 6 866
- Fimancing (101) (3 754) {14 147) 2 385 {15 617)

{*) The net cash flows in each segment only include the most representative company 1n the segment

The information recorded In each of the segments relates to the results of the Group companies which
develop such activities

In accordance with existing legislation, transactions between Group companies are camed out at
market prices

Sales by the Group 1n Spamn total EUR 6299 thousand (EUR 10 647 thousand in 2014), in the
European Union they total EUR 25 222 thousand (EUR 63 B71 thousand in 2014) and in the rest of the
world they total EUR 39 thousand (EUR 0 thousand in 2014) The sale of discontinued operations
described 10 Note 14 amounted to EUR 7 043 thousand and EUR 9 326 thousand in the European
Union

In 2015, the sales 1n the segment “Sale of energy” have basically been carned out through two agents,
which represent 8% and 21% respectively of net revenue in 2015 The remaning chents are very
fragmented

Annexes | and |l detail the Subsidiary companies included in the consolidation scope, both group and
associates




—L
opde

Grupo Opde

Annex |- Subsidiaries and associate companies at December 31, 2015
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Shareholding
Name and location Actvity % par value Group company holder  Auditor
OPDE Parlicipaciones  Industriales  SL  Promotion and development of 100% OPDE Invesiment
{Fustiiana, Navarme) companies tspaila, SL
Quas Producciones de Energia Fotovoltaca, Manufacture and sale of sofar 100% OPDE Investment Deloitie
SL -{Navare) trackers Espafia, SL.
PV Integral Management, S L. {Spain} Rendenng of services 100% ﬁzgfuz;r:cgimnes -
Etlicala Lora, SL - {Navarre} QPDE Participaciones
Includes 25 SPVs sale of energy Operating of pholovollai: parks 100% Industriales, 5L Debitte
Mecan Solares, S - (Navarre) ll\rrlaa’:kuafamct|.|re and sale of solar 100% g;gl;;n\éeimnl
Grupc Solar Basico Celta 2, SL - (Fustifana OPDE Partipaciones
Navarre) Sale of energy 100% Idustiakes, S L Delottte
Promotion, marufacture and sale of QPDE Parlcipacones
OPDE Extemadura, S L - (Navarre) photovollat: facillies 100% Industnales, S L -
GSBGamma 2, 5L
OPDE India Solar 1 Prvale Ltd (India) ;‘m’;‘l’gﬂ:g;a‘;""e and sale of 100% gg;"’Omega 2L .
(%)
Cantilana Fotovoltaica, S L (Navare) Sale of energy 100% !OndPlIiEm!:TertsdgT_cmnes Deloitte
Promotiont manufacture and sale of Mecanizados Solares,
Mecasolar LS, Lic (USA} photovaltaic faciibes 100% SL :
Promotiones  Folovoltalcas  Juglans, SL. OPDE Partcipaciones
{Fustfana, Navarre) Sale of energy 100% Indusiriales S L Deloitte
Promeciones  Folovoltacas  Juniperus, SL OQPOE Paricipaciones
{Fustiiana, Navamre) Sale of encigy ok Industnales, S L Deborte
Promociones  Folovoliacas  Laurus, SLi. OPDE Paracipaciones
(Fustifiana, Navarre) Sale of energy 100% Industnales 5 L. Deloitie
Promociones  Fotovoltacas  Piws  SL QPODE Paricipaciones
{Fustfana, Navarre) Sale of energy 100% Industiales, S L Dektte
Elogia Trans Uno, S LU {Navarre) Sale of energy 100% OPDE Paopaciones  pelote
Ribaforada 10 S rL - (Turin, ltaliy Sale of energy 100% g:’;l;aln\éezlment -
Mecasolar Hellas, AE - (Greace) ghrzrg?’glolg;crr;:g;at;mre and sale of 0% hsﬂefamzadus Solares, Other
Sociedad Ibérica de Generacibn de Enemla OPDE Participaciones
Fotovoltaica XV {Mavarre) Sale of energy 100% Industnales, S L. i
Grupe Valsingula, S L. - {Navarre} OPDE Invesiment
Inchudes 230 companies without acimvity Operating of phatovoktae parks 100% Espafia, SL .
Sociedad Ibénca de Generacéin de Energla OPDE Parbicipaciones
Fotovoltaica XVIl (Navarre) Sale of energy 100% Industnales, $ L -
Rbaforada 7§71 - {Turln, ialy} Sale of energy 100% g;’gga’"‘éef"“e“’ .
Render Energlas Renovables § A, (Caceres) mﬂ%ﬁgﬂﬂ{gﬁm and sale of 95% g:’;%;n\éeftmem -
Promobon, manufacture and saie of OPDE Participacknes
Opde Levante, S1. - (Navarie) phofovolalc fachbes 100% todusinales, S L. :
OPDE Solare, Srl - [Haly) Promotion, manufacture and sale of
photovoltar: facilibes b0% OPCE Laly, Sl °
OPDE Pugtia, Sl - {ltafy) Sale of energy 60% OPDE Solare, Sr1 -
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Shareholding
Name and location Acttivity % par value Group company holder  Auditer
Solare Pugfia, S rL - {Italy} Sale of energy 60% OPOE Solare, St -
OPDE Solare, Sl - (ltaly) Promotion, manufaciure and sale of
photovoltaic faciies 40% Opde Investment, S L. -
QPDE Puglia, Srl. - {ltaly} Sale of enemy 40% Opde Invesimend, § L -
Solare Puglfa, Sl - ([taly} Sala of energy 4% Opde Investment, 5 L. -
Promation, manufacture and sale of CPDE Investment
Opde Hellas, E P & - {Greece) pholovoltale faciiles 9% Espafia, SL )
QPDE Partoipaciones
Almaraz Fotovoltalca XXXIV S L {Navare) Sale of energy 100% Idushiates, 5L -
OPDE Investment
Ribaforada 3 S ri - {Tunin, laly} Sale of energy 100% Espana, S| -
OPDE Investment
Premonte Eguzki 2 Sl - (Milan, ltaly} Sale of energy 100% Espafia, 5L -
Anbgali 1, Sr1 {ltaly) Promotion of parks 100% azsf"i:;rgcgiclunes -
Antgall 9, S (ltaly) Promotion of parks 100% Ionzesi;fergmgim"es -
Anligahi 6, Sr1 (ltaly} Promotion of parks 100% ag&iﬁfgﬁcma -
Antigali 7, S 11 {lizhy) Promabion of parks 100% OPDE Paripaciones .
Promobon, manufaciure and sale of OPDE Investmen
OPDE taly, Sr1 - {laty) photovoliaic facilibes 100% Espafia, S -
GSB Gamma 2, S L.
Chi Gilnes Enerjisi Elektrk Urebm Ve Ticaret (50%)
Limited Suke (Turkey) Promotion of parks 100% GSB Omega2, SL -
(50%)
G5B Gamma 2, SL
Epsion Gines Enerjist Elekink Uretim Ve (50%) ;
Ticaret Limited Sirket (Turkey) FPremoton of parks 100% GSB Omega2, SL
{50%)
GSB Gamma 2, 5L
lota Glnes Enenisi Elekink Uretm Ve Ticaret {50%)
Limied Srkel (Turkey) Promation of parks 100 GSB Omega2, SL -
{50%}
GSBGamma 2, S1
Kappa Gines Enensi Elekink Uretm Ve [50%)
Ticaret Limited Sirkets (Turkey} Promoton of parks 100% GSB Omega 2, 5L .
(50%)
GSBGamma 2, SL
Lambda Gines Enerjisl Elekink Uretm Ve {a0%)
Ticarel Limted ket (Turkes) Promotan of parks 100% GSB Omega?, SL -
(50%)
GSAGamma2, 5L
Omicron Glines Enensl Elekdrk Uretm Ve (50%) R
Ticaret Limted Siket (Turkey) Promoton of parks 100% GSB Omega2, S L.
(50%)
GSBGamma 2, SL
Py Glnes Enerfsi Elektnk Uretm Ve Ticaret {50%)
Limited Skel (Turkey) Promatan of parks 100% GSE Omega 2, SL -
{50%)
GSBGamma 2, 5L
Rho Glnes Enerss Elekirk Uretim Ve Ticaret Promation of parks 100% (50%) )

Limited Srkets (Turkey)

GSBOmega 2, SL.
(50%}
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Shareholding
Name and location Acttrvity % par value Group company halder  Auditor
(G5B Gamma 2, 8L
Tau Gines Enerjis| Elektnk Uretm Ve Ticaret {508} )
Lumited Sirkey {Turkey) Promotion of parks 100% GSB Omega2, 5L
{50%}
GSB Gamma 2, S L.
Theta Gineg Enenis: Elektnk Uretim Ve Ticaret (50%) R
Liruled $irket (Turkey) Promolion of parks 100% (S8 Omega2, 5L
{50%)
Almaraz Fotovoltaica XXXIX § L. (Navarre) Operating of photovoltac parks 100% ﬁl;?:imzirlslcgicmnes -
Alnaraz Folovolizica XO0MIL SL (Navare)  Operating of photovokiaic parks 100% azg&z;’e’:”ﬁm"es ;
Proyecios y Montajes Electncos Riosur, SL. Promotion, manuiacture and sale of 40% OPDE Investment .
{Badajoz) pholovoltak: fackites Espafia SL
Tordesiltas Solar F¥ 11 SL - {Bempanel, Sale of energy 100% !OEDEmP?emcl]SJ?‘t‘:lones .
Valencia) ndusinales,
Lo;de;ltl?s Solar FV12, SL - {Beniparel, Sale of energy 100% IO};D!—%{]E’;nlclgaLcmnes i
‘alencia ndustizles,
Tordesitas Solar FV13 §L - (Beniparel, Sate of ene 100% OPDE  Parmicipaciones A
Valencla) h Industnales, S L.
Tordesilas Solar FV14,5L. - {Benuparmel, QPDE  Partcipaciones B
Valencia] Sale of encrgy 100 Indusines, S
Tomesillas Solar FV 15, SL - (Benipanel, Sale of energy 100% OPDE  Participaciones R
Valenoia) Industriales, S L
Tordesilas Solar FV 16, SL - {Benlpanel, Sale of energy 100% OFDE  Paritipaciones .
Valencia) Industnales, S L
Tordesilas Solar FV 17 SL. - (Bemparel, OPDE  Parrcipaciones )
Valencia) Sale of energy 100% ndusincks S L
Tordesilas Solar FV18 ,SL - {Beniparmel, OPDE  Parcipacones
Valencia) Sale of energy 1o0% Indusinales SL
Tordesllzs Solar FV19, SL - [Bempamel, Sale of energy 100% QOPDE  Parlicipackones }
Valencia) Industriales, 5L
Tordesilas Solar FV 20, SL - {Benlparel, Sale of energy 100% OPDE  Parlkipaciones )
Valencia) Industriates, S 1
Almaraz Folavoliaica XL, S L. {Navama) Cperating of phalovoltaic parks 100% Icr)lzuDsEﬂl:;r;ngai:mes -
Almaraz Fotovoliaica XLI, S L {Navarra) Operatng of photovattaic parks 100% gg&izggalfmes B
;(\Nr:%gpsa de Inkciatvas Sosienibles Ill, SL Operatng of photovoltarc parks 100% g;gﬁalméefmem .
'(I'r:gl:rl::)a de Iniciativas Sostenibles fv SL1 Operatng of photovoltalc parks 100% g:pgl;alngeitmenl )
(GSB Gamma 2, S L. {Navare) Promabon of parks 100% azEsEml;aler:.cgiciones -
GSBlata 2, § L. (Mavare) Promation of parks 100% ﬁdp'l?prg‘c‘sp?_w“es .
58 Kappa 2, § L. (Navarre) Proraolion of parks 100% O Fancpacinss .
GSB Lambda 2, § L (Navare) Promotion of parks 100 ﬁz‘?fmzﬂmgicms -
GSB Omugron 2, S L. (Navarre} Promotion of parks 100% %Efnggfmes -
GSBKzppa2 SL.
Gamma Solar § De Rl De Cv (Mexxo} Promotion of parks 100% (5004) 2 5L 0% B
GSBlota 2, )]
GSB Lambda 2, SL.
Garambusto Sols: § De R De Cv (Mexics)  Promoton of parks 0% e Pcion 2, 5L

(50%)
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Sharehalding
Name and location Acttivity % par value Group company holder _ Auditor
OPDE Partkipaciones
(GSB Omega 2, SL (Navarre) Promotion of parks 100% Industrales, § L -
GSB Lambda 2,5 L
{50%)
Lambda Solar S De RI De Cv {Mexico) Prometion of parks 100% GSB Orieron 2, 5L -
(50%)
GSB Kappa2, S L.
Rho Solar 5 De R De Cv {(Mexko) Promotion of parks 100% {508 -
GSBlota 2, 5 L. (50%)
GS8B Kappa2, S L.
Theta Solar 5 De Rl Be Cv {Mexco) Promotian of parks 100% {50%) .
GSBlota2, SL (50%)
Prometion, manufacture and sale of
Renter Gestones, St (Navarre) photovoltar faciiles 24% Opde Exremadura, St -
Promotion, manuiacture and sale of OPDE Parteipaciones
Opde O&M. SL -{Navane) photovoltaic faclites 100% Industnales SL .
Promotion, manufacture anc sake of QPDE Investment
OPDE Investment US Corp (USA} pholovollai: faciites 100% Espadia, SL -
Promatien, manufacture and sale of QPDE Investment
OPDEUSA L LC - (USA) phatavaltaic Faciliies 100% Espafa, 5L -
Aragonesa de Inxiativas
INVERSIONES SOLARES DEL ALTIPLANO, sostentbles S L (500%)
SR.L DECV {Mexio) Promotion of parks 100% Turokense de
Inversiones Sastenibles
SL (50%)
ELECTRICIDAD FOTOVOLTAICA ﬂzu':’si:g’s‘”g’f’“{“gg;ﬂ
ARGENTUM, SRL DECV (Mexico} Promotion of parks 100% GSE Ometon 28 L
(50%)
ENERGIA SOLAR DE PONIENTE, SRL. DE OFDE' Paricipaciones
CV (ltaly) Promation of parks 100% Indusinales SL { 50%)
GSBlata2 5L (50%)
INFRAESTRUCTURA  ENERGETICA  DEL 3555]_':'3&210;‘0:':1(0;?“
NORTESRL.DECY (laly) Promotion of parks 100% GSB Kappa 2SL
(50%)
{NVERSIONES Y PROMOCIONES SOLARES OPDE Paricipaciones
DEL CENTRD SRL DE CV (Méxoo) Industnales S L { 50%)
Promotion of parks 100% GSE lambda 25 L.
{50%)
SOLEIL FOTOVOLTAICA, SAP| DE CV OPBE' Parixpaciones
(México) Promation of parks 100% Indusinzles SL (50%}
Tordesdlas Solar FV 11
SL {50%)
INFRAESTRUCTURA ENERGETICA DEL ﬁ:x?si;’;rsh%pfu(oggs)
QESTE, SAP| DE CV (México} Promation of parks 100% Tordestias Sotar FV 12
SL. (50%)
PROMOCIONES SOLARES MW, S API DE ﬁgﬁ:&“’”ﬁ‘fggﬁm
CV (México) Promotion of parks 100% Tordesdtas Solar FV 13
SL {50%)
PROMOGION FOTOVOLTAICA VALLADOLID, ﬁiﬁ&:mpf"fgg)
SAPI DECV (Méxco) Promation of parks 100% Tordesllas Solar FV 14
SL (50%)
OPDE Parfipationes
SOLAR DE LA SIERRA, SAF| DE CV Industnales SL (50%)
{Wexco} Promogon of parks 100% Tordesilas Sotar FV 15
SL, (50%}
ENERGIA FOTOVOLTAICA MIRAFLORES, Promotion of parks 100% OPDE' Participaciones
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SAPI DECV [Miuco) industnales SL {50%)
Tordesillas Selar FV 16
SL (50%)
OPOE BRASIL GENERACAQ DE ENERGIA {%25’5 Folouoitaca SLU
LTD (Brazil) Promotion of parks +00% OPDE Invesiment
Espaha SL (1%)
ALPHA SOLAR LIMITED (UK) OFDE Partcipaciones
Promaoton of parks 100% Industrales 8 &
BETA SOLAR LIMITED (UK) Promotion of parks 100% ﬁzESmZ?gcépfcws
GAMMA SOLAR LIMITED [UK) Pramotion of parks 100% ﬁ:?i}:?er:cépfcmnes
DELTA SOLAR LIMITED {UK) Promation of parks 100% E\Z{?ii?eﬂsm;;pimnes
EPSILCN SOLAR LIMITED (UK} Pramotion of parks 100% ﬁzﬁizierzcépﬁclones
1OTA SOLAR LIMITED (LK) Promatien of parks 160% l(})IZESEmzlaerlmsp:ctones
OPDE Partcipaciones
KAPPA SOLAR LIMITED {UK) Promotion of parks 100% Indusiniales S L
LAMBDA SOLAR LIMITED {UK} Bromotion of parks 0% azuofﬁzaler:cépicmes
Oipde UK, imited (UK] Construction of parks 100% ﬂgfgﬂ?ﬂ’s“’fm“es
GAMMA SUN RENEWABLE ENERGY INDIA ﬁsl?sﬁn:;’fcgpfc'(";‘;i)
Ltd (india) Promotion of parks 100% G5B Gamma 28L
{1%)
OMEGA SUN RENEWABLE ENERGY INDIA ﬁ;?ﬁ;.;i?cépfcfgg;)
Ltd {India) Promotion of parks 100% GSR Omega 25L
{1%)
GRUPO SOLAR BASICOBETA 1 SL (Spam)  Promobon of parks 100% MECAIEAD0S
MECASOLAR ESPARA SL (Spar) Promotion of parks 100% ggf:gggfs
OPDE Investment
Piemonte Eguzii 6 Srl - (Milan, taly) Sale of energy 100% Espana, 1
Antigali 10, S r| {ltaly) Promotion of parks 100% OFDE Pariopaciones
Antigal 8, SrE {ltaly Promotion af parks 100% ﬁgzﬁgfﬁgi’mm‘e’
Anbgah4, Srl (ltaly} Promotion of parks 100% Eﬁiﬁr::?e’;'cgic'ﬂﬂes
Antigall 5, St 1 (lialy) Promation of parks 100% OPDE Partcipaciones

Industriakes, S L
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Annex - Subsidiaries and associate companies at December 31,2014

Shareholding
% par
Name and location Achvity value Group company holder Auditor

OPDE  Participaciones  Industnales, SL  Promotion and development of _
{Fustifiana, Navarra) companies 100%  OPDE Invesiment Espafia, SL -
QOtras Producciones de Energia Fotovollaca, Manufacture and sale of sofar .
SL - (Navarra} ackess 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia SL. Deloitie
PV Integral Management, S L (Espafia) Rendening of services 100% gtDE Partcipaciones Indusinales, -
Eolica la Lora, S L - [Navarra) OPDE Participaciones Industnales,
Includes 25 SPVs for energy sale Operating of photovoliaic parks 100% SL Deloitte
Mecanizados Solares S L - {Navamra) x:;‘ku:;cwe and sale of solar 1008  OPDE Investment Espafia SL Deloitte
Grupo Solar Basico Delta 2, SL - (Fusbifana, Sale of energy 100% OPDE Partcipaciones Indusinales Deloitie
Navara) SL

Promation, manufacture and sale of OPDE Parlcipacones Indusinales,
OPDE Extremacura, 5 L - (Navarra) pholovoltac facilties 100% SL

Promation, manufacture and sale of GSB Gamma 2,81 (99%) .
OPDE India Solar 1 Prvale Lid (Ind:a) photevoltaic faciiies 100% GSB Omega 2, SL (1%)
Cantilana Fatovoliaica, § L (Navara) Sale of energy 100% g':_DE Partcipzciones Industnales, Deboitte

Premotion, manufacture and sale of
Mecasalar US, Lie (USA) photovoltaic facikbes 100% Mecanizados Solares, 5L -
Prochlones Folovoltaicas  Juglans, SL Sale of enery 100% OPDE Parbeipacicnes Indusnales, Defotte
{Fustiana, Navarra) SL
Promociones Fatovollaicas  Juniperus, SL OPDE Partcipaciones Indusinales
{Fusthana, Navarrz) Sale of energy 100% sSL Deloitte
Promocones  Fotovoltacas  Lsurus, SL OPDE Participaciones Indusinales,
{Fustitana, Navarra) Sale of energy 100% St Deloitte
Promociones  Folovoltaicas  Pinus,  SL. OPDE Paricipaciones Indusinales,
[Fustfiana, Navara) Sale of energy 100% sL Delitte
Elogia Trans Uno, S LU (Navarra) Sale of energy 100% gtDE Partcipacones Indusinales, Deloitie
Ribaforada 10 Sl - {Turin, laly} Sale of enargy 100%  OPDE fnvestment Espafa, SL -
Mecasolar Hellas, A E - {Greece) Promotion, manufacture and sale of 70% Mecanizados Solares S L. Other

' pholovoltaic faciiies

Sociedad Ibénca de Generacion de Energra OPDE Participaciones indusinales, }
Fotovaltaica X1 (Navarra) Sale of energy 0% g
Grupo Valsingula, S L. - {Navarra) M R
Includes 23 camganes wilhout actwy Operating of photoveoltaic parks 100%  QPDE Invesiment Espaiia, S L
Sociedad lbenca de Generacion de Energia QOPDE Partcipaciones Industnales,
Fotavoltaica XVl {Navarra) Sale of energy 100% gy i
Ribaforada 7 S 11 - (Tunn, ltaly) Sale of energy 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia SL -

Promotion, manufacture and sale of _
Render Energias Renovables, 5 A. {Caceres) photovoliaic faciiies 51% QPLCE Investment Esparia, 5 L -

Promotion, manufachure and sale of OPDE Parlicipaciones indusirales,
QOpde Levante, S L. - [Valencia) photovoliac faciites 0% 3L -
OPDE Sofare Sl - (ltaly) Promotion, manufacture and sale of

photovoltaic faciibes 6% OPDEhaly, Srl .
OPDE Pugha, Sr1 - {ltaly) Sale of energy 60% OPDE Solare, St -
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Solare Pugha, 811 - (taly} Sale of energy 60% QPDE Solare, $¢1 -
OPDE Satare, St - (laly) Promotion, manufacture and sale of

photovoltaic facilibes A% Opde Investmen, S L )
OPDE Pugha, Srl - (ltaly} Sale of energy 40% Opde Investment, SL -
Solare Puglia, St - {lialy) Sale of energy 40% Opde Investment, S L -

Promoton, manufacture and sale of -
Opde Hellas, EP E. - {Greece) photovolla facites 0% OPDE Investment Espana, SL -
Almaraz Folovoltzca OOV, S L (Navama)  Sele of energy 100% gPLDE Partcipaciones ndustiales }
Ribaforada 3 Srl - (Turin, ltaly) Sale of energy 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia SL -
Piemonte Eguzki 2 Sr1 - {Milan, Italy) Sale of energy 1008  OPODE Investment Espaia, S L -
Antigali 1, Sr . (lialy) Promobion of parks 100% gPLDE Partcipaciones indusingles, ;
Antigall 8, Sr§ (Haly) Promation of parks 100% gTDE Participaciones Industiales, -
Anbgah§ Sr1 (laty) Promotin of parks o OrDEPalpacones s,
Antigal 7, 5l (laly} Promoticn of parks 100% giDE Parbcipaciones (ndustiales, -

Promation, manufaciure and sale of N
OPRE Italy Srl - {ltaly) photovoltai facdes 100% COPDE Investment Esparia, SL Delitte
Chi Giines Enemisi Elekink Urebm Ve Ticaret GSB Gamma 2,5 L (50%)
Cimited Sirkets (Turey) Promotion of parks 0% Gsaomega2, SL {50%) :
Epsion Gineg Enerisi Elekink Uretm Ve GSB Gamma 2, S L {S0%) )
Ticaret Limited $rket (Turkey) Promotion of parks W00% g Omega2 SL (50%)
lota Glnes Enensi Elektnk Uretm Ve Ticaret GSB Gamma 2, $ L (50%} R
Limted Sirkets (Turkey) Promotin of parks 0% G5B Omega2, $L (50%)
Kappa GoOneg Enerlsi Elektik Uretim Ve GSB Gamma 2, S L {50%) }
Ticaret Limited Sirket: (Turkey) Promotion of parks 100%  Gspomega2, SL (50%)
Lambda Gines Enerfisi Elektnk Uretim Ve GSB Gamma 2,5 L. {50%) }
Ticaret bimited Sirkell (Turkey) Promoton of parks 0% GopCmegaz SL (50%)
Omicron 30nes Enerfisi Elekiik Uretm Ve GSB Gamma 2, S L (50%)
Ticaret Limed Sirked (Turkey) Premation of parks 100% G35 Omega2 SL. (50%) :
Psi GOnes Enerfis) Elektrk Uretim Ve Ticaret GSB Gamma 2, 8L {50%)
Limited Sirke (Turkey) Promoban of parks 0% GsB Omega2, 5L (50%) -
Rhe Gines Enerjist Elekink Uretim Ve Ticaret (G5B Gamma 2, 5 L. [50%)
Limited Stkes (Turkey) Promoton o parks W% 3 omega2, SL (50%)
Tav Gineg Enerisi Elekirk Wellm Ve Ticaret G5B Gamma 2, 3L (50%)
Lumsed Suket (Turkey) Promoton of parks 100%  Gogomega2, 5L {50%) -
Theta Giineg Enefisi Elekink Uretim Ve Ticaret Promoton of parks 100% G5B Gamma 2, 5L (50%) )

Limited Suket {Turkey}

G5B Omega 2, SL. (50%)
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Almaraz Folovoltaa 00X, S 1. (Navama)  Operating of pholovoltac parks oy OFDE Pertepacones ndstrdes,
Amaraz Fotovollaica XOOOVII S L. (Navarra)  Operating of pholovokiac: parks sop  OPDE Parbcpacenes industraes,
ggﬁgl;; y Monlajes Eléctrcos Riosur, 5L E&n;(‘)’g?tr;;cn;;;\m;aeiwre and sale of A% OPDE Investment Espafia, SL A
L(a){gss:g?s Solar FV 11, SL - (Benipatel, Sate of energy 100% gtDE Partoipaciones Industnales, }
L:Igﬁz:g?s Solar FV12, §L - (Benmarel, Sale of energy 100% gl;-'_UE Pzriicipaciones Industnales, }
L:ﬁg::g?s Solar FV 13, SL - (Beniparel Sale of energy 100% g:DE Partcipaciones Industnales, B
Lt;lrg:(s::!?s Solar FV14SL - (Beniparrel, Sale of energy 100% (::DE Pamicipaciones Indusinales, R
L:lrgﬁzg?s Solar FV 15, SL - (Benparrel, Sale of energy 100% giDE Participaciones Industiales, .
Lzlr:enzzlalz)as Solar FV 16, SL - (Benmpamel, Sale of energy 100% STJE Partcipaciones Industiales, )
;rlglrg:;i:?s Solar FV 17, SL - (Benlparel, Sale of energy 100% (s)I:DE Paricipagiones Industnales, )
I{Z{gﬁé:gi)ls Solar FV 18 ,SL - (Beruparrel, Sale of energy 100% gF:DE Partcipaciones Industnales, }
Lg:gﬁi:lal‘;:s Solar FV19 SL - {Beniparmel, Sale of energy 100% (SJTDE Paricipaciones Industnales .
:’/g'rgﬁgg?s Solar Fv 23, SL - {Benipamel, Sale of energy 100% ST_DE Partcipaciones Industnales, A
Amaraz Folovoltaica XL S L (Navarra} Operating of photovoltaic parks o OFCE Pancipacones indsiaes,
Almaraz Fotovoliaica XLI, S L {Navarra) Operatg of photovakaic parks 0w gr e Farbapacones indusinales,
arq:g:?r:a de Iniciativas Sostenibles Hl, SL perayng of photovohtaic parks 1%  OPDE Investnent Espaha, SL _
(Tr:’;?,':r';:;’ de Iniiatvas Sastenbles V., L. operatig of photovollai: parks 100%  OPDE Investment Espafa, L -
GSB Gamma 2, § L {Navarra) Promobion of parks 100% gTDE Parbepaciones Industales,

GSBlota2 SL [Navara) Promatan of parks 100% gT_DE Partcipaciones Indusinales .
GSB Kappa 2, S L. (Navara) Promoton of parks wg  OrDEPariopacones ndustakes.
GSBLambda2, SL (Navara) Promotion of parks fop  SFDE Panapaconesindisiales,
GSBOmcron 2, 5 L (Navara) Promobon of parks o SDE Partopaciones indisinales -
Gamma Solar S De Rl De Cv (Mexico} Pramoton of parks 100% ggg Iﬁ: p; ;ILS (IE':CE;%) .
Garambullo Solar S De Rl De Cv (Mexica) Promotion of parks 100% ggg g:g;%sst(ﬁsﬁ)) -
GSB Omega 2, SL {Navara) Promobon of parks 100F& gtDE Partcipaciones Indusirales, -
{ambda Solar S De R De Cv (Mexico) Promoton of parks 100% ggg g:‘g;zz' %Ll; ((525;?, -
Rho Sofar S De Rl De Cv (Mexico) Promotion of parks s OSBKappaZ, St (S0%) -

GSBlota2 SL (50%)
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58 Kappa 2, S L. (50%)
Theta Solar § De R De Cv {Mexico) Promation of parks 100% GSBloia2, S L {50%) -
Promation, manufacture and sale of
Renter Gestiones, S L {Mavara) photovaltaic faciltes 4% Opde Extremadura, 5 L -
Promotion, manufacture and sale of OFDE Parbaipaciones Indusinales,
Opde O&M , S L. - {Navarra) photavoliar: faciilies 100 sL -
Promotion, manufacture and sale of
OPDE lnvestment US Corp {USA) photovoltaic facies 100%  OPDE lnvestment Espafia, S1 -
Promobon, manufacture and sale of
OPDE USA, LL.C - (USA} photovoliac [acioes 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L. -
INVERSIONES SOLARES DEL ALTIPLANO, Aragoresa dseﬂ“gg}",:’)‘"
SRL DECYV {Mexico) Promotion of parks 100% Tutolense de Inversiones -
Sostenibles S L. (50%)
ELECTRICIDAD FOTOVOLTAICA OPDE Parbcipaciones Indusinales
ARGENTUM, SRL.DECV (Mexico) Pramaton of parks 10086 SL(50%) -
G5B Omcron 2 S L. {50%)
ENERGIA SOLAR DE PONIENTE, SRL CE OFDE Paricipaciones Industriales
CVltaly) Promotion of parks 100% SL {50%) -
GSBlota 2S L (50%)
INFRAESTRUCTURA ENERGETICA DEL OPDE Paricipaciones Industnales
NORTESRLDECV ({lialy) Promation of parks 100% S (50%)
G5B Kappa 251 (50%)
INVERSIONES Y PROMOCIONES SOLARES
OPDE' Partepaciones Industiales
DEL CENTRO SRL DE CV IMExco) grominen of parks 100%  SL (50%) -
G5B lambda 2SL {50%)
SOLEL FOTOVOLTAICA, SAP) DE CV QPDE Partcipaciones Indusinales
{México) Promotion of parks 100% SL{50%%) -
Tordesillas Solar Fv 11 5 L. {50%)
INFRAESTRUCTURA ENERGETICA DEL OPDE' Paricipaciones Indusinales
QESTE, SAPI DECV {Méxco) Promotion of parks 100% 5L {50%) -
Tordesilas Solar FV 12 S L. (50%)
PROMOCIONES SOLARES MW, SAP1 DE gﬁ“&&i}"“"’m"“'”"”smk’s
CV [Méxco) Promoton of parks 10 Tordesilas Solar PV 43 S L (50%) -
PROMOCION FOTOVOLTAIGA VALLADOLID, SO s pecenes Industrzles
SAPI DECV (México} Promoton of parks 100% T decilas Solar FV 14 S1.{50%) .
OPDE' Partcipaciones Industnales
SOLAR DE LA SIERRA, SAPI DE CV SL {50%)
(Méxco) Promoton of parks 100%  ordesilas Solar FV 15 SL [50%) -
ENERGIA FOTOVOLTAICA MIRAFLORES, gt”f;;;”““ames ndustnaes
SAP| DECV (México} Promotion of parks 100% Tordesillas Solar EV 16 S L (50%) -
QPDE BRASIL GENERACAD DE ENERGIA
OPDE Folovoltaica StU (9%}
LTD (Brazil Promotion of parks W0®%  opDE [vestment Espaia S L (1%} )
ALPHA SOLAR LIMITED {UK} Promobon of parks 100% giDE Parcipacones indusinales _
BETA SOLAR LIMITED (UK} Promobon of parks 100% gT_DE Participaciones Industnates R
GAMMA SOLAR LIMITED (UK) Pramotion of parks 100% (S)':_DE Partcipaciones Industriales i}
DELTA SOLAR LIMITED (UK} Promoton of parks 100% gPLDE Participaciones Industnales B
EPSILON SOLAR UMITED {UK) Promotion of parks 100% OPBE Partictpaciones Industnales )

SL
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I0TA SOLAR LIMITED {UX) Promotion of parks 100% gPLDE Participaciones Indusinales )
KAPPA SOLAR LIMITED (UK) Promotion of parks o OFOE Particpacones lndusinaies .
LAMBDA SOLAR LIMITED (LX) Promotion of parks 100% g}"-DE Partcipacines Industrales )
Opde UK, fimiled (UK) Park construction w0 OrDE Partaipacones ndustiles
Haymaker Mountraill, Limited {UK) Park construction 100% gPLDE Partcipaciones indusinales,
GAMMA SUN RENEWABLE ENERGY INDIA OPDE' Partcipaciones Indusirales
Ltd (India) Promotion of parks 1007  SL (59%) -
GSB Gamma 2SL (1%}
OMEGA SUN RENEWABLE ENERGY INDIA OPDE' Partcrpaciones Indusinales
Lid {Indha) Promation of parks 100%  SL {9%%) -
GSBCmega 251 (1%)
GRUPO SOLAR BASICOBETA 1 St (Spain)  Promotion of parks 100% MECANIZADOS SOLARES S L -
MECASOLAR ESPANA SL (Spain) Prometion of parks 100%  MECANIZADOS SOLARESSL -
Puchase-sale of matenals and other
Proyectos Integrales Solares, S L - {Navarra) photovollar: sector fetated actvibes 100%  OPDE Invesiment Espafia, SL. Deloite
Piemonte Eguzki 6 S 1l - (Milan, ltaly) Sale of energy iMP  OPDE Investmenl Espafia SL .
Promaobon, manufacture and sale of
Proinso US,LLC - (USA) pholovoltaic faciltes 100%  Proyecios Integrales Solares, S L -
Antigah 10, S 11 (iaty) Pramoton of parks 100% gtﬁE Parbcipaciones Indusimales .
Anbgali8, Sl (lia) Promobon of parks 100% gpLDE Partcipaciones indusinales, -
Anbgali 4, SeL (taly) Promation of parks tow QPO Paricpacones Indusnales -
Antigali 5, S 11 {italy) Promoton of parks oy OFDE Parichacones ndistnaios .
Puchase-sale of materals and other
Promso ltaly, St - (italy) photoveliai: sector related aciviies 100F  Proyeclos Integrales Solares, S L. -
Promotion, manufacture and sale of
Protnso Deutschland GmbH (Germany) photovotiaic faclites 100%  Proyectos Integrales Solares, SL -
Prolnso UK Lid (UK) Promotion, manufacture and sake Of  ygoe,  proyectos Intsgrales Solares, S L ;

phatovoliaic facililes
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DIRECTORS REPORT FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015

1 Group financial situation and evolution of business

The consolidated net equity of Grupo OPDE (OPDE Investment Espafia, S L and subsidianes) (the Group)
at 2015 year end amounts to EUR 67 516 thousand, which 15 an increase of EUR 3398 thousand with
respect 10 the pravious year

In 2015, the Group has made a net profit of EUR 6 933 thousand and has distributed dividends in 2015
through the leader of the Groupe Opde Investment Espafia, S L, for EUR 2 800 thousand The Group has
also accumulated a 95% stake {51% at December 31, 2014) in Opde Sur, S A (previously named Render
Energlas Renovables, S A}

The Group Is engaged In actve negotanons and has a clear intention to sell the ltalan compantes which
own photovoltaic parks Ribaforada 3, Srl, Ribatorada 7, Srl, Piemonte Eguzki 2, Sl and Piemonte
Eguzki 6, Sr1 and the Spanish subsidianes which own photovoltaic parks in Ablitas, Cantiflana, Ciguiuela,
Ecya and Elogla On January 16, 2016 the parties have signed a Sales and Purchase agreement to go
ahead with the sale of the [Halian companies and at the tme of presenting these consolidated financial
statements a Sales and Purchase agreement has been signed to go ahead with the sale of the Spanish
companies

The proceeds from the sale of these compames will mainly be used for the new nvestments which are
forecasted in the Amencan continent

At December 31, 2015 working capital 1s positive and amounts to EUR 49 973 thousand, including the effect
of short-term reclassification of the assets and hatilities related to the non-current assets held for sale, which
has been commented on previously Thus, It we separate this effect, working capital stands at EUR 29 525
thousand (EUR 17 230 thousand at 2014 year end), which represents a significant increase

After the exit of Grupo Proinso on October 17, 2014 the Group s business still focuses on the following
activites design and manufacture of trackers, rendenng of operating and maintenance services for
photovoltaic parks, development and construction of solar parks and energy production

2 Profit for the year 2015

Profit for the year 2015 stands at EUR 6 933 thousand compared to 2 profit of EUR 5 684 thousand in the
previous year The increase in profit 1s mainly due to the containment ot structural costs, the decrease In
financial expense, the exit of Proinso in 2014 which generated negative results, the net posiive effect of
exceptional actions and the recognition of advance taxes genarated in 2013 which will be oftset in following
years, offset by lower sales of MW in the photovoltaic parks, even though construction activity has been
along similar nes (see paragraph below)

The construction achvity of the Group in 2015 has been similar to that in 2014 In 2015, a total power of
27MW has been bulli, which corresponds to the photovoltaic parks in the UK, Mount Mill, Crewkemne |,
Langard and Ochard, plus the parks in Qaklands and Natewood were completed 13 3% m 2015 (2 1MW)
Thus, In 2015 the Group has constructed a total of 29,1 MW whilst in 2014 the Group constructed 27,83
MW

However, In 2014, sales of photovoltaic parks were recorded for 27 83MW but 1 2015 only sales for
14 1MW have been recorded (Mount Mill {12MW) plus the degree of completion in 2015 for the parks in
Oaklands and Natewood) Thus, at year end, the Group has 15 MW constructed and for sale in the United
Kingdom

Thus, at December 31, 2015 the Group owns operating photavoltaic parks which have a total power of 56
MW, located 1n Spain, ltaly and the United Kingdom (41 MW at December 31, 2014)
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3 Risks, uncertainties and foreseeable evolution of business

The most significant nsks and uncertamnties are related to the regulatory framework of the sector, which 1s
not favorable al all o the construction and promotian of parks in Spain, and to a lesser extent in ltaly

Nevertheless, in Spain in June 2014 legislation which regulates and defines the legal and ecoromic model
for elecincal energy production using renewable energy sources as well as setting the remuneration
parameters for photovoltaic facililes was passed

Currently, the Group 1s developing projects in other countries, In particular Mexico, the USA and Chile as
well as constructing in the United Kingdom

4 Environment

The Group complies with current environmental legislation

5 Personnel

The Group ends the year with 67 employees (65 employees at the previous year end)

6 Events subsequent to the accounting date

Subsequent to the presentation of the financial statements on December 31, 2015 there have been no
events which have had a significant effect on the financial statements, except for the signing of the
previously mentioned Sales and Purchase agreements

z Other

The Group has not used significant resources in matters of research and development

The Company holds no treasury shares and has not traded in treasury shares durng the year

Gurrently, the Group uses financial insiruments two swaps in relaton lo the Project Finance of the

photovoltaic park 1in Ablitas {Navarre) Their amounts and effect are reflected in the Group s financial
statements

The Average Payment Penod of the Group in 2015 has been 35 days




